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SENTECH is a Schedule 3B State-owned Company (SOC), operating in the Information, Communications and 
Telecommunications (ICT) sector. The company’s sole shareholder is government, represented by the Minister 
of Communications. In accordance with its mandate as an SOC, SENTECH’s strategy is guided by and aligned 
with government’s Medium-Term Strategy Focus (MTSF) goals and corporate objectives as set by the Board.

SENTECH was started as a technical division of the South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC),  
responsible for the corporation’s signal distribution services. In 1992, the division was corporatised as  
SENTECH, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the corporation. In 1996, SENTECH Act 63 of 1996 was amended, 
converting SENTECH into a separate public company, responsible for providing broadcasting signal distribution 
services as a ‘common carrier’ to licensed television and radio broadcasters. 

In 2002, following the deregulation of the telecommunications sector, SENTECH was granted two additional  
licences, allowing the company to provide international voice-based telecommunications and multimedia  
services. These licences were subsequently converted into an Individual Electronic Communications  
Network Service (I-ECNS) and an Individual Electronic Communications Service (I-ECS), licenced in terms of  
the Electronic Communications Act, 2005 (Act No. 36 of 2005) (ECA).

VISION

To be a world-class provider of sustainable communications platform services in South Africa and the rest of 
the African Continent.

MISSION

To provide open access and interoperable communications platform services that enable affordable universal 
access to digital content services, in the context of South Africa’s socio-political imperatives as a developmental 
state.

VALUES

To enable the company to deliver on its mandate, we believe that each one of us should live and enact the 
company’s values. These are:

•	 Integrity:	We act with honesty, fairness and openness.

•	 Quality	 Customer	 Service: We are committed to proactively ensuring high levels of customer  
satisfaction and building a relationship based on trust.

•	 Innovation:	We endeavour to develop and support creativity and responsible risk-taking.

•	 Accountability:	We deliver on our promises and take responsibility for our actions. 

•	 Social	Responsibility:	We endeavour to fulfil our mandate in a manner that benefits our employees, 
customers, suppliers, communities and the environment in all the areas that the company operates in.

1.2  CORPORATE STATEMENTS

1.1  CORPORATE STATUS
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1.3  BOARd OF dIRECTORS
MR THABO MONGAKE  
(CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARd)

Mr Thabo Mongake was appointed Non-executive Director for a three-year period, with effect from 
1 March 2012. He held several key positions at executive level in numerous organisations,  

including Executive Director of BIDZ Auctioneers and Valuers; Business Development  
Manager at Auction Alliance; and Chief Executive of the Prime Time Group (Pty) Ltd. He is  
Chairperson of the Free State Land Use Advisory Board, a Board member of Free State  
Gambling and Liquor Authority and a Non-executive Director of the Free State Social Housing  
Company. Mr Mongake served his articles with Madjiedt Cooper Attorneys and Cooper  

Bezuidenhout Attorneys. He holds a Diploma in Auctioneering from the South African College 
of Auctioneering and is currently completing an LLB degree at the University of the Free State.

dR SETUMO MOHAPI  
(CHIEF ExECUTIVE OFFICER)

Dr Setumo Mohapi was appointed Chief Executive Officer (CEO) with effect from 1 November 
2010. An accomplished expert in the Information and Communications Technology (ICT) sector,  

Dr Mohapi worked at various companies in the sector, including his preceding position as 
the Chief Operating Officer of IWAYAFRICA, a subsidiary of the Telkom Group in Mauritius. 
He also served as Chief Technical Officer of ICT-Works. Dr Mohapi’s academic standing 
includes a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from 

the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), a Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering,  
also obtained at MIT and a PhD in Electrical Engineering (Telecommunications) from the  

University of the Witwatersrand.

MS RUdZANI RASIKHINYA  
(CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: APPOINTEd 1 SEPTEMBER 2013)

Ms Rudzani Rasikhinya was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) with effect from  
1 September 2013. Ms Rasikhinya is a Chartered Accountant CA (SA), with solid experience 
at senior management level. She previously served as CFO at the Department of Home 
Affairs and held various other senior positions including, but not limited to, Chief Director: 
Accounting and Support at the National Treasury, as well as senior management positions at 
KPMG. She also served on various boards and is a member of SAICA.

MR KGANKI MATABANE 
(CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER)

Mr Kganki Matabane was appointed Chief Operations Officer (COO) for a five-year period commencing on  
1 July 2012. A highly experienced public and private sector professional, Mr Matabane served 

as an Executive Director of Transformation Policy and Operations at Business Unity South  
Africa (BUSA). He held various strategic positions at the Black Management Forum 
(BMF), the Gauteng Provincial Legislature, City Power Johannesburg, Spoornet and Anglo  
Platinum. Mr Matabane serves on various boards and is a practicing member of the South 
African Institute of Professional Accountants. His academic qualifications include, inter alia; 

a Leadership Development Programme, a Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration 
and a B-Tech in Cost and Management Accounting.
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MR STEPHEN MOLALA 
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR)

Mr Stephen Molala was appointed Non-executive Director for a three-year period with effect 
from 1 March 2012. Mr Molala has 15 years working experience in the field of institutional  

development and management, as well as teaching and capacity-building. He has vast  
experience in grassroots work, general management and transformation and also  
contributed to several research publications. He was appointed Municipal Manager for 
Greater Tubatse, Maluti-a-Phofung and Fezile Dabi Municipalities. In addition, Mr Molala 
previously held positions as Managing Director at Afriscope and Head of Department at 

the Free State Department of Police, Roads and Transport. Mr Molala holds an MA degree  
(Geography) and a BA (Hons) from the University of Pretoria, and FDE (Education Management)  

from the College of Education of South Africa and a BA and HED from the University of Fort Hare. 

MS xOLISWA dAKU 
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR: APPOINTEd 1 NOVEMBER 2013)

Ms Xoliswa Daku was appointed Non-executive Director for a three-year period with effect from  
1 November 2013. Ms Daku is a qualified legal practitioner with extensive experience in law, 

business administration and project management. She holds a B.Proc degree (University 
of the Transkei), a Diploma in Legal Practice (UCT), and LLM degree (UWC), a Diploma  
in Human Resources Management (Varsity College), an MDP Diploma (University of  
Stellenbosch), an Advanced and Postgraduate Diploma in Project Management  
(Cranefield University), a Contract Management Certificate on Facilities Management 
and recently finalised an Executive MBA (UCT Graduate School of Business). Ms Daku 

serves on several boards at non-executive level, with a focus on corporate governance. 
She is involved in stimulating women in business development and, in light of this, she 

served as the National Chairperson of the South African Women Enterprise Network (SAWEN).

MS REITUMETSE HUNTLEY 
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR: APPOINTEd 1 NOVEMBER 2013)

Ms Reitumetse Jacqueline Huntley was appointed non-executive Director for a three-year  
period with effect from 1 November 2013. She holds a BProc and an LLB degree from the 
University of the Witwatersrand and a Management Advanced Programme Certificate from 
Wits Business School. She has extensive experience in Commercial and Corporate Law, 
including Telecommunications Law. Ms Huntley advised many state-owned enterprises 
on corporate governance issues and general compliance with relevant legislation. She 

also serves on several boards at non-executive level.

 
 

MS NTOMBIZOdWA MBELE 
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR: APPOINTEd 1 NOVEMBER 2013)

Ms Ntombizodwa Mbele is a Chartered Accountant with over 17 years of commercial experience. She 
has extensive experience in the fields of Project Finance and Structuring, Treasury Management,  

Financial Management and Audit. As an executive for several years, she has rich experience  
on strategy formulation and implementation, reinforced by years of active serving  
previously and currently on other Boards and Audit Committees. Having excelled in  
progressively senior professional roles over the years - at Deloitte Financial Services, Absa  

Corporate and Merchant bank, Development Bank of Southern Africa, Trans-Caledon 
Tunnel Authority, Total Utilities Management Services, she has acquired wide-ranging 

financial services experience traversing both the private and public sectors. She currently 
 runs GZN consulting; a company she founded that specialises in the development of the 
 business case, feasibility studies and funding model for infrastructure development.
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MR PARIS MASHILE  
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR: TERM ENdEd ON 28 FEBRUARY 2014)

Mr Paris Mashile was appointed as a Non-executive Director from 1 March 2011 for a three-year 
period, ending 28 February 2014. Mr Mashile is the Programme Director: Digital Multimedia  

Management at the Gordon Institute of Business Science (GIBS) and an independent  
consultant on broadcasting and telecommunications. He is a former CEO of Vunani Electronic  
Communications and a former Councillor and Chairperson of ICASA. Mr Mashile is also 
Chairman of Community, a company that provides platforms for mobile applications. His pre-
vious professional experience includes the following: Director of Infrastructure Development  

and Management at Rustenburg Local Municipality, Chief Electronics Engineer at Rand  
Water; Project Manager at Siemens Ltd; Marketing Engineer at Reutech; Research Engineer at  

AMOCO Technology Company in the USA; and Physics Lecturer at the University of Botswana. 
Mr Mashile holds a BSc (Hons) degree in Physics and Electronic Engineering (Combined) from the  
University of Leeds in the UK and an MSc in Physics from Lancaster University. He also holds an MSc 
degree in Electronic Engineering (Light Current) from Washington University in St. Louis MO USA. He 
is a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE). 

MS LEAH KHUMALO 
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR: TERM ENdEd 31 MAY 2013)

Ms Leah Khumalo was appointed as a Non-executive Director from 1 June 2010 for a  
three-year period. Ms Khumalo is the founder and Managing Director of Mngoma - Mlaba  

& Khumalo Inc. (MMK Inc.). Ms Khumalo has extensive experience in, and advanced  
knowledge of drafting and interpreting legislation, as well as the execution of litigation. Ms 
Khumalo holds a Bachelor of Juris degree, and an LLB degree Project Management and 
Professional Legal Training.

MR SIPHO JOHANNES MJWARA 
(NON-ExECUTIVE dIRECTOR: RESIGNEd 31 JULY 2013)

Mr Sipho Johannes Mjwara was appointed Non-executive Director for a three-year period with effect 
from 1 March 2012. Mr Mjwara resigned his directorship on 31 July 2013. Mr Mjwara previously 

held the position of Executive: Business Development at Business Connexion. He has 27 years’ 
experience in the broadcasting and media development sector; 18 of which he served in senior  
and executive leadership positions in both the public and the private sector. He served as  
Special Advisor to the Minister of Communications and contributed to the review of SENTECH’s  
role as a signal distributor, to the establishment of NEMISA, as well as the first National  
Broadcasting Plan for South Africa. Some of the positions previously held by Mr Mjwara  

include the following: Deputy Director-General: Policy; Deputy Director-General: Broadcasting and  
Multimedia Policy in the Department of Communications; and Manager: Strategic Planning Unit at 

the SABC.
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It is with great pleasure and humility that I present this Annual Report for 2013/14 
Financial Year in accordance with the provisions of section 55 (d) of the  

Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), National Treasury  
Regulation 29 and the Money Bills Amendment Procedure and 
Related Matters Act of 2009, to the Executive Authority, National  
Treasury, Auditor-General and the Portfolio Committee on  
Communications, our customers and the citizens of South Africa.

The past year will no doubt be remembered for the passing 
away of former State President Nelson Mandela, the founding fa-

ther of our nation. SENTECH was mandated to provide satellite  
connectivity and broadcast services for his state funeral on 15  

December 2013. The funeral broadcast infrastructure was required to 
aggregate content from different venues and deliver it to South African 

citizens and the rest of the world, which resulted in over 1 billion people 
being able to witness the event.

On behalf of my colleagues on the Board of Directors, I would like to extend a 
special word of thanks to all employees of SENTECH for the continued outstanding delivery on SENTECH’s 
Public Service Mandate, as well as on the company’s financial sustainability results, despite difficult trading 
conditions in the sector. This performance was delivered against a clean audit given by the external auditors, 
which demonstrates that state-owned companies, such as Sentech, are committed to delivering on their Public 
Service Mandate obligations within the highest standards of corporate governance principles and standards. 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

In the Corporate Plan for the year under review, the Board of Directors committed SENTECH to continuously 
deliver on its social and financial dividend obligations towards the citizens of South Africa and build on the  
single most important strategy of the company: Enabling access to universal, open, inter-operable and  
affordable network platforms for broadcasting and content distribution.

The key intervention of this strategic objective was built on the following interventions:

•	 Digital	Terrestrial	Television

SENTECH committed that, by the end of the 2014/2015 financial year, the company would complete 
the rollout of the Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT) Network to ensure that the country is ready for  
Analogue Switch-Off (ASO) in June 2015, in accordance with the International Communications Union (ITU)  
agreement.

The DTT Network build will be completed by the end of this calendar year, enabling the country to begin 
its provincial and/or regional analogue switch-off programme. Upon completion, the DTT Network will 
cover 84% of the population (58.9% geographic coverage), with the remaining 16% of the population 
set to receive digital broadcasting services via the Direct-To-Home Satellite (DTH-S) gap-filler platform.

•	 Public	Service	Radio	Expansion	

Over the years, SENTECH and the SABC, with funding support from the Department of Communications 
(DoC), have been rolling out the Low Power Transmitter Network to expand and extend the range of 
Frequency Modulation (FM) radio services across the country.

Whilst SENTECH has made significant strides with this programme, there is still scope for enhanced 
achievement of the universal access and diversity of FM radio services to reach each household in the 
country. The Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA) responded positively in 
resolving frequency planning issues, lack of funding regardless, for the SABC to roll out the Low Power 

1.4  CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT
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Transmitter Network, which meant that some of the targets set for the period under review could not be 
met.

SENTECH is, encouraged by the Shareholder’s commitment to this programme and is hopeful that it will 
receive the appropriate and necessary funding during the next MTEF period.

•	 MultiChannel	Broadcasting	and	Content	Distribution	Platforms

In the context of the converged Information Communication and Technology (ICT) industry, the Board 
also committed the company to enabling converged universal access to broadcasting and content  
services across all user devices and digital screens.

At the end of the period under review, both the DTH-S and Converged Content Distribution platforms 
had achieved over 60% of their planned target performance in terms of customers and users. This  
performance is an encouraging development for the company and the Industry at large – and supports 
the company’s strategy to establish the Innovation Division, focused on developing medium to long-term 
solutions for the industry.

To summarise, the period under review, with regard to SENTECH, can be put into perspective by one of 
former State President Nelson Mandela’s famous quotes: 

“After climbing a great hill, one only finds that there are many more hills to climb.”

GOING FORWARd

The Strategic Plan for the 2014 to 2017 MTEF period will continue with the core strategic interventions by the 
Company: Enabling access to universal, open, inter-operable and affordable network platforms for broadcasting 
and content distribution.

The Board of Directors challenged the Executive Management and all employees to exceed their performance 
in the following areas:

• Clean audit and administration;
• innovations that will continuously bridge the digital divide; and
• financial sustainability of the company. 

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, I would like to express the Board’s sincere gratitude to the Shareholder for the stewardship,  
policy oversight and persistence in ensuring that SENTECH achieves its core public service mandate of  
universal access to communication networks and services. I would further like to thank the Parliamentary  
Portfolio Committee on Communications for their sector oversight and robust engagement on strategic issues.

To my colleagues, the Board of Directors of SENTECH, let me offer my sincerest gratitude for your hard work 
on the development and monitoring of our strategy and your exemplary commitment to corporate governance. 
To the Executives, Senior Management and all members of staff, your efforts are celebrated every day by each 
citizen that receives a public broadcasting service for the first time in their lives. 

It is my fervent belief that as we move towards implementing the MTEF 2014 – 2017 Corporate Plan, you will 
demonstrate the same passion and commitment to the company’s mandate as an enabler of government’s  
programmes for the benefit of all our citizens.

 
Mr	Thabo	Mongake 
Chairperson
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1.5 CHIEF ExECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

SENTECH achieved 91% of all the key milestones it had committed to for the period under review and, more in 
particular, the review and adoption of community radio broadcasters tariffs; as well as extensions of television 
and radio public broadcasting services via the low power signal distribution transmitter model.

SENTECH also facilitated the deployment of signal distribution infrastructure for new commercial radio services, 
such as Power FM and Smile FM; enabled 24 hour access to the Voice of the Cape and Radio 786 with their  
respective license areas in the Western Cape, for the first time since their launch 18 years ago; and the  
unveiling of the FREEVISION open access inter-operable Direct-To-Home Satellite Platform Service.

The key highlights during the period under review included the following:

• The DTT network population coverage increased to 82.13% after construction of 46 new sites;

• the number of new Direct-To-Home Satellite customers and Multi-channel Content Distribution  
Platform users exceeded the target by 60%;

• final-year customer satisfaction levels improved by 20% against the original baseline;

• network availability exceeded the annual target; and

• employee engagement and satisfaction levels exceeded the annual target.

In addition, South Africa also hosted the African Nations Championship (CHAN) Tournament between  
January and February 2014, and SENTECH provided the satellite communication infrastructure and services that  
enabled the tournament to be broadcast globally.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The financial year under review was a watershed year for SENTECH. We are coming to the end of the DTT  
infrastructural activities and by the end of October 2014 we would have finished all the DTT migration sites. 
There is still a large amount of work to be done throughout the DTT value chain, in order to ensure that the 
country is ready for ASO.

In summary, I would like to emphasise the following in relation to our financial results:

• Group revenue from continuing operations increased by 8.4% to R975 million (2013: R899 million). 
Earnings before taxation (EBT) increased to R 224 million (2013: R28 million), with R170 million of this 
movement relating to a once-off interest charge during the 2012/13 financial year;

OVERVIEW 

This report is presented on behalf of management and staff  
members after another year of outstanding results. The  

performance of the company is judged on the effectiveness 
and efficiency of the execution of its mandate towards its  
customers and the public at large as contained in the  
SENTECH Act, the Electronic Communications Act and  
related industry policies and regulations. 

Furthermore, the company is required to ensure that it  
operates in compliance with a number of legislation and  

regulations that guide the operations of public entities and  
companies in general. We are excited that we have not only  

executed extremely well on our mandate but we have also operated 
with clean administration as demonstrated by the second clean audit in 

a row.
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• the total equity of the group exceeded R1.1 billion (2013:-R 953 million) for the first time ever and we 
regard this as a significant milestone;

• cash generated from operations decreased from R226 million to R47 million, due mainly to changes in 
working capital in respect of accounts payables and inventories;

• R110 million (net of Government grant) was spent on additions to property, plant and equipment;

• finance income of R46 million (2013: R27 million) was earned on the Group’s own cash reserves. 
The increase was due to the higher amounts of cash invested during the period under review. The  
comparative figure was adjusted to take into account the correction of the policy in the treatment of 
interest on funds held;

• the broadband funding, including an interest net of taxation of R622 million, was returned to the  
National Treasury during the period under review; and

• the return on net assets from continuing operations exceeded the target of 10% to reach 15%, due to 
an improvement in the profit before interest and taxation on the budgeted amounts.

Lastly, SENTECH has received a clean audit for the second financial year in a row, with our external auditors 
having declared the following:

• Unmodified opinion on financial statements;

• no material findings on pre-determined objectives;

• no material findings on internal controls; and

• no material findings on compliance with laws and regulations.

The clean audit is a result of a planned and concerted effort by the Board, Executive Management and all  
company employees.

LOOKING AHEAd

We still believe that we are on par with global thinking and developments and we have the courage to move 
forward in the global context, while not losing sight of the unique socio-economic context in which we operate. 
We are moving ahead with efforts to digitise the broadcasting sector across the board, based on the foundation 
of our core principle of providing open-access inter-operable technology, as well as service and application 
platforms that will deliver on our mission statement. In this regard, we will increase our efforts to place an even 
greater emphasis on our customers, the broadcasters and general content providers, as well as on the needs 
of society at large.

We are going to accelerate our efforts to create a healthy organisation, as defined by employee  
satisfaction, clean administration, competent operations, strong finances and healthy customer and service  
provider relationships. We fully embrace all these aspirations and we will continue to build and reinforce our 
nascent healthy state.

CONCLUdING REMARKS

I would like to express my profound gratitude to the Board of Directors for their continuous support. I would 
also like to pay special tribute to our customers, our Shareholder, the Department of Communications, as well 
as to our stakeholders, such as the ICASA, MDDA and NCRF. Lastly, I would like to sincerely thank the staff of 
SENTECH, your dedication has been an inspiration.

Dr	Setumo	Mohapi
Chief Executive Officer
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2.1  PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
The Board adopted a set of strategic objectives for the 2013 - 2016 MTEF planning period, which ensured that 
the company would achieve its public service mandate objectives, remain aligned to Shareholder priorities and 
ensure financial sustainability.

During the 2013 - 2016 MTEF period, the company had set itself a total of eleven (11) performance targets, 
which the Board measured and reviewed every quarter of the 2013/14 financial year.

STRATEGIC 
GOALS

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

KEY 
PERFORMANCE 

INdICATORS

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

TARGET ACTUAL
ACHIEVEd 

OR NOT 
ACHIEVEd

SG 1: Ensure that 
ICT infrastructure is 
accessible, robust, 
reliable, affordable 
and secure to meet 
the needs of the 
country and its 
people.

Ensure universal 
access of the digital 
broadcasting signal 
distribution network.

Ensure universal 
access of the digital 
broadcasting signal 
distribution network.

Population covered 
via the Digital  
Terrestrial Network.

84% 82.13%  Not Achieved

Population covered 
through Direct-
to-Home Satellite 
gap-filler platform.

100% 100%  Achieved 

Formal submission 
of the Broadcasting 
Signal Distribution 
Master plan to the 
SIP15 Steering 
Committee.

Submission to SIP15 
Committee by end 
Q3.

Submission to SIP15 
Committee by end Q3. Achieved

Establish an open 
access Direct-To-
Home Satellite 
platform to promote 
growth of the local 
content development 
industry.

Commercial open 
access DTH-S 
platform.

Launch DTH-S 
platform Launch DTH-S platform  Achieved 

Number of new 
DTH-S and MCD 
open access platform 
users.

5 8  Achieved 

Ensure universal 
access connectivity 
to public institutions.

Number of VSAT 
terminals installed 
(cumulative).

50 137  Achieved 

SG 2: Ensure high 
levels of customer 
and stakeholder 
satisfaction by 
meeting their needs 
at all times.

Ensure that network 
availability meets 
SLA requirements 
across all platforms.

Weighted average 
availability based on 
product revenue.

99.80% 99.86 %   Achieved  

Improve customer 
and stakeholder 
satisfaction.

Customer and 
stakeholder service 
index.

62% 87%  Achieved 

SG 3: Drive organi-
sational performance 
in order to improve 
organisational  
effectiveness.

Improve employee 
engagement and 
satisfaction.

Employee  
engagement and 
satisfaction levels.

60% 62%  Achieved 

SG 4: Ensure that 
the company is finan-
cially sustainable.

Improve employee 
performance.

Percentage of  
managers performing 
at different levels.

Establish baseline 
performance  
measures.

Performance  
contracts signed  by all 
executive directors, execu-
tives  and heads. 

 Achieved 

Maintain sustainable 
Return on Net Assets 
(RONA).

RONA from continu-
ing operations. 10.00% 15.4%  Achieved 
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During the period under review, the company achieved 90.9% (10 of the 11) of its performance targets missing 
the target for Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT) population coverage of 84%, with a performance level of 82.1%, 
as a result of the following factors:

• Late delivery of UHF antennas to the Oudtshoorn, Uniondale, Uniondale Town, Willowmore, Ulundi,  
Riversdale, Piet Retief, Napier, Upington, Upington Town, Beaufort West, Graaf Reinet, Kuruman Hills, 
De Aar, Prieska, Pomfret, Springbok, Pofadder, Garies, Victoria West and Van Rhynsdorp sites;

• site acquisition challenges at Sterkspruit and Clifton; and

• site access challenges at the Colesburg installation.

REASONS FOR POSITIVE VARIANCES

• The number of new DTH-S customers and MCD Open Access Platform users exceeded the target by 60%;

• the number of VSAT terminals installed exceeded the target by 274%, due to an unprecedented growth in 
the market during the period under review;

• there was an improvement in the efficiency of network availability, especially with regard to analogue 
television and FM radio, resulting in a better-weighted average availability, based on product revenue;

• the improvement in customer satisfaction of over 20% of the target was realised by putting in a concerted 
effort to address all customer concerns that had been raised during the Baseline Survey;

• the Employee Satisfaction Survey exceeded the target, due to an improvement in the company’s  
operational management; and

• the RONA from continued operations exceeded the target, due to an improvement in profit before interest 
and taxation of the budgeted amounts.
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2.2  PROdUCT PERFORMANCE
SENTECH’s product portfolio consists of Broadcast Signal Distribution (BSD) and Government and Enterprise 
(GE) solutions. The BSD products comprise television and radio services, while the GE products consist of 
Facility Leasing and VSAT services. 

The BSD services currently account for 85% of the SENTECH revenue base, while GE solutions accounts 
for 15% of revenue. BSD revenue was up 7% from the previous year, primarily driven by strong growth of the 
Direct-To-Home (DTH) satellite platform product, which achieved double-digit growth over the period under  
review, as well as from the contribution by the Low Power Project for the SABC. GE revenue was down 11% 
from the previous year, largely due to the increasing competitive landscape for VSAT products.

2.2.1  BROAdCASTING SIGNAL dISTRIBUTION 

2.2.1.1		Analogue	Television

The terrestrial television market remained at a watershed during the period under review, awaiting the commercial  
launch of Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT) services.

Analogue television generated 45% (R439 million) of SENTECH’s total revenue, primarily driven by the SABC, 
e.tv, MNet and community broadcasters, which is an increase of R30 million (6%) on the previous financial year. 
SENTECH continued its drive to increase universal access to broadcasting services through the rollout of Low 
Power Project for the SABC. During 2013/2014, 16 new Low Power/Self-help sites were rolled out in rural and 
underserviced areas, which previously had no access to terrestrial TV services.

With the country in transition from analogue to digital television, the focus within television was on assisting 
broadcasters preparing for migration. A key focus area within this context, was engaging with the broadcasters 
and other stakeholders on a tariff model for DTT. Discussions are in an advanced stage and it is anticipated 
that a final tariff model would be concluded within the first half of the 2014/2015 financial year. To date, e.tv 
and community broadcasters signed a Memorandum of Understanding, appointing SENTECH as their preferred 
broadcasting signal distributor.

2.2.1.2		Direct-To-Home	Satellite	

The Direct-To-Home Satellite (DTH-S) Platform Service has three main customer categories, namely exist-
ing terrestrial broadcasters, as part of the DTT gap-filler platform, Free-To-View broadcasters and Business  
TV/Radio customers. 

DTH-S is a key growth area for SENTECH and revenue now accounts for 7% of total SENTECH revenue, which 
is up by 6% from 2012/13. DTH-S revenue for the period under review was R65 million, which was up 26% from 
the previous financial year, an increase of R13 million. 

Of the estimated 12 million TV households in South Africa, up to one third use satellite to access television 
broadcasting services and it is projected that by 2017 this figure could increase to 50% of households. In line 
with the increasing importance of this platform, SENTECH started the process of optimising its DTH-S services. 
Since the inception of SENTECH’s Playout Service in 2013, which offers smaller broadcasters a cost-effective 
broadcast medium, the platform grew by an additional nine new DTH channels during the period under review. 

2.2.1.3		Frequency	Modulation	(FM)

SENTECH provides FM BSD services to 18 SABC radio stations, 18 commercial radio stations and 81 community  
radio stations. 

FM revenue currently accounts for 21% of SENTECH revenue. The FM portfolio achieved a 8% year-on-year 
growth and yielded revenue of R201 million, which was an increase of R15 million compared to the previous 
financial year. 
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Revenue growth in FM was driven by the Low Power Project for the expansion of SABC’s services to areas that 
previously had no access to terrestrial broadcasting services; a strong uptake of services from the community 
broadcasting sector; and marginal growth in the commercial broadcasting sector. During the 2013/14 financial 
year, the SABC resolved not to expand its FM Low Power Project further, while expansion of private commercial 
and community services on the Low Power transmitter network did not materialise.

During 2013/14, SENTECH expanded its community broadcaster customer base by providing services to 14 
new FM community broadcasters, which included Kurara FM in the Northern Cape, Hweletsa Hope and River 
FM in Gauteng, Highway Radio, Durban Youth Radio, Good News FM and Divine Touch FM in KwaZulu-Natal,  
Univen FM and Malamulele FM in Limpopo; Kumkani FM, IFM and Kouga FM in the Eastern Cape; Radio 
Kaapse Punt in the Western Cape, and Modiri FM in North West. Various existing community radio stations were 
also provided with expanded geographic coverage and value-added services.

The new commercial radio broadcaster Power FM, came on air in Gauteng during 2013/14 and another three 
transmitters were added to its network (one each of Heidelberg, Johannesburg and Sasolburg - the latter two 
being trial sites). Various existing commercial radio stations were also provided with expanded geographic  
coverage and value-added services. 

SENTECH continued with its upgrading and refreshing of the FM broadcast network, which included the  
upgrade of audio processors and the replacement of audio codecs for the SABC. These network upgrades will 
improve the quality of public service radio broadcasting across the country.

In terms of the digitalisation of FM radio, SENTECH is sponsoring a DAB+ trial that will be conducted in conjunction with 
broadcaster members of NAB and SADIBA. The trial period will commence early during the 2014/15 financial year.

	
2.2.1.4		Medium	Wave	(MW)	

SENTECH provides MW signal distribution services to two SABC radio stations, one commercial radio station 
and five community radio Stations. During 2013/14, MW achieved R7 million in revenue, which was a 17% 
increase on the previous financial year. Revenue growth for the MW product was due to the full year revenue 
from Radio Veritas in Gauteng and from Radio Cape Pulpit in the Western Cape. Both these were realised  
earlier than expected.

Three new MW commercial licenses were awarded by ICASA at the end of the 2013/14 financial year.

In terms of the digitalisation of MW radio, SENTECH is co-sponsoring a DRM trial in conjunction with Radio 
Pulpit and other MW broadcasters. The trial period will commence early during the 2014/15 financial year.

	
2.2.1.5		Short	Wave	(SW)	

SENTECH operates a world-class SW facility at Meyerton, which enables South African broadcasting services 
to reach into the African continent and beyond. SW as a service is globally experiencing a downturn as it is 
continuously being replaced by alternative technology platforms, such as satellite radio and the internet.

The SW product continued to face challenges during the financial year under review and was the only radio 
product to experience a revenue decrease, compared to the previous year. The product achieved revenue of  
R19.8 million, which was 17% lower than the previous year.

A three-year sustainability plan was launched during April 2013, which is geared to return the SW product to 
sustainable operational profits. The plan involves scaling down the SW services to profitable services only, and 
aligning the operational structure with the reduced service. This plan started bearing fruit, as operational profits 
were achieved for the four-month period from November 2013 to February 2014 - despite the fact that not all the 
cost-saving plans had been fully implemented.
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2.2.2  GOVERNMENT ANd ENTERPRISE

2.2.2.1	 Facilities	Rental

SENTECH rents out its over 220 sites to more than 90 service providers (public and private sector) who use 
the infrastructure for various communication services. Facilities rental’s revenue was R46 million for the period 
under review, which is 17% up on the previous year.

The growth in revenue from SENTECH’s facilities was supported by a concerted effort to improve the internal 
processes, in order to provide services to external users of these sites. While there has always been a strong 
demand for the use of SENTECH’s high sites, due to their ideal location and coverage reach, there has generally  
been a lengthy timeframe for processing site-sharing requests. During 2013/14, processes were streamlined 
and additional capacity added to improve the efficiency of the facility rentals process. The direct result was a 
marked increase in revenue from the facilities rental business. SENTECH will continue to build upon this in the 
2014/15 financial year and will endeavour to position SENTECH as a provider of sustainable communications 
platform services in South Africa and the rest of the African Continent.

2.2.2.2	 Very	Small	Aperture	Terminal	(VSAT)

The SENTECH VSAT product went through several innovative initiatives, ranging from HUB upgrade to migration.  
The HUB upgrade and migration were completed during the third quarter of the year and the 20-year-old HUB is 
currently stable and serves as the industry standard. The instability of the HUB had resulted in some customers 
threatening to cancel the services of SENTECH, while some refused to pay. 

However, SENTECH exceeded the budgeted number of sites during the financial year under review, connecting 
175 sites in total, of which 143 were customer sites and the rest were CSI and SENTECH DTT telemetry sites. 
Centlec was the main project that was completed during the period under review, with a total of 52 sites. The  
installation of the sites was completed during the fourth quarter and the billing was expected to commence  
during the first quarter of the new financial year.

Revenue for VSAT service offerings continued to decline on average 12% year-on-year. During the period  
under review, the revenue dropped by 45%, compared to the previous financial year’s revenue (R24 million for 
2012/13 financial year compared to R13 million for 2013/14 financial year). Going into the 2014 - 2017 MTEF 
period, SENTECH’s focus with regard to its VSAT services will be on extending and supporting government-led 
ICT initiatives with USAASA and other government departments/institutions and, more in particular, the rollout 
of the end-to-end communications network services to rural schools and community Telecentres. 

SENTECH will also look at alternative and more cost-effective satellite providers for this product, so as to 
ensure that VSAT is affordable to customers and could compete in the marketplace. SENTECH is planning to 
pilot the Ka-band services to enable the company to enhance the product and provide current and prospective 
customers with an improved and competitive service. SENTECH will also target transactional type customers, 
such as point-of-sales (POS) terminal applications, in order improve the profitability of the product.
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2.3  NETWORK PERFORMANCE
2.3.1  BACKGROUNd 

SENTECH operates approximately 330 terrestrial distribution sites and a satellite platform to provide customers 
with signal distribution services for television, radio and IP connectivity. These networks are operated 24/7 and 
are continually maintained to improve reliability, as well as to ensure the availability of services and long-term 
operations continuity.

These sites are scattered around the country and located a few kilometres away from SENTECH Operations 
Centres. Travel is inevitable for most maintenance activities and, on average, it takes a 200km trip to access 
these sites for maintenance.  

The map below illustrates the national spread of SENTECH’s terrestrial infrastructure in use to provide  
television and radio services to the citizens of South Africa.

2.3.2  OVERALL NETWORK PERFORMANCE

Based on predetermined service level targets and corporate plan objectives, SENTECH measured each  
platform service for the 2013/14 financial year per product revenue. SENTECH exceeded the corporate plan 
network availability target of 99.8% and delivered an overall network availability of 99.86% during the 2013/14 
financial year.
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The table below presents the overall network availability for all operational platform services for the year ending 
March 2014.

 
SENTECH realised service availability improvement for FM and television services during the period under  
review. The improvement is as a result of technology refresh programmes that replaced several end-of-life 
(EOL) systems for terrestrial television and radio networks during the period under review. As a result, it realised 
a 7.2% and 2.1% decrease in network-related failures consecutively, compared to the previous financial year. 

The graph below presents network performance for platform services for the 2013/14 financial year.

SENTECH exceeded network performance targets for analogue television, FM radio, SW radio and DTH platform 
services for the 2013/14 financial year. The VSAT platform performed below the norm, due to fibre contribution 
link failure as a result of cable theft between the HUB and the uplink facility. MW radio services performed below 
target due to lengthy interruptions resulting from a combination of unit theft and the unavailability of spares.

NATIONAL NETWORK PERFORMANCE - 2013/14 FY WEIGHTEd 
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TOTAL 
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OVERALL 
INTERRUPTIONS
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INTERRUPTIONS
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Television 99.70 5 431 200 10 519 99.82 6 155 99.89 60.55
Radio 99.70 7 211 268 13 788 99.81 7 761 99.89 26.22
Medium 
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99.50 70 080 482 98.32 756 98.92 0.95

Short Wave 99.50 26 952 46 99.84 42 99.86 2.54
VSAT 99.80 8 736 151 98.13 148 98.15 1.58
Satelite 99.80 701 594 201 99.93 376 99.94 8.02

OVERALL NETWORK AVAILABILITY 99.86
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2.3.2.1		Terrestrial	Television	Network

SENTECH operates a total of 620 transmitter network sites to provide SABC, MNet, e.tv and community  
television broadcasting services. 

For the 2013/14 financial year, the terrestrial television platform exceeded the set service level target of 99,70% 
by achieving an overall availability of 99,82% and a SENTECH availability of 99,89% across the network. A  
network failure rate improvement of 7.2% was realised during the period under review, due to technology refresh 
programmes concluded during previous period.

Figure	1	below: depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for television services.

Major television service interruptions for the 2013/14 financial year were caused by:

• Eskom power and stand-by generator system failures;

• Limited access to spare modules for the aging analogue TV network;

• Integration of DTT network systems (DB Boards, transmitter and antennas);

• Power cable theft and site intrusions;

• Infrastructure access limitation due to severe weather conditions (snow and rain).

2.3.2.2		Terrestrial	FM	

SENTECH operates a total of 823 transmitter network sites to provide radio signal distribution services to public, 
private, commercial and community radio broadcasters. 

During the 2013/14 financial year, the terrestrial FM platform exceeded the set service level target of 99,70%, 
by achieving an overall availability of 99,81% and a SENTECH availability of 99,89% across the network. A 
network failure rate improvement of 2.1% was realised during the period under review due to technology refresh 
programmes concluded during the previous period.

FIGURE 1: 2013/14 TERRESTRIAL TELEVISION NETWORK PERFORMANCE

Network	Availability Network	Interruptions
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Figure	2	below: depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for FM radio services.

Major FM service interruptions for the year 2013/14 financial year were caused by:

• Third-party contribution network failures (Telkom);

• infrastructure access limitation due to severe weather conditions (snow and rain);

• delayed restoration due to safety access risks at Kwaggafontein and Table Mountain;

• antenna system failures;

• integration of electrical distribution boards for the DTT network;

• power cable theft and site intrusions; and

• Eskom power, stand-by generator and solar system failures.

2.3.2.3		Medium	Wave	Terrestrial

SENTECH operates a total of 8 transmitter network sites.

The medium wave platform performed below the service level target of 99,50%, by achieving an overall  
availability of 98,32% and a SENTECH availability of 98,92% across the network for the 2013/14 financial year. 
A decline in network availability was due to service interruptions, resulting from combiner and matching unit theft 
at the Welgedacht site, as well as  limitations in the availability of spares, due to obsolete technology.

Figure	3:	on the opposite page depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for MW radio 
services.

Major MW radio service interruptions during the 2013/14 financial year were caused by:

• Planned maintenance to replace guy rope insulator at Meyerton station for 12 days during June and July 
2013;

• Unavailability of spares, resulting in extended service outages;

• Vandalisation and theft of infrastructure (theft of antenna-matching unit, diesel and Eskom infrastructure).

FIGURE 2: 2013/14 TERRESTRIAL FM NETWORK PERFORMANCE
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2.3.2.4		Short	Wave	Terrestrial

SENTECH operates a total of eight transmitter network sites.

For the 2013/14 financial year, the SW radio platform exceeded the set service level target of 99,50%, by 
achieving an overall availability of 99,84% and a SENTECH availability of 99,86% across the network.

Figure	4	below: depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for SW radio services.

There was no serious interruption for SW services during the 2013/14 financial year.

FIGURE 3: 2013/14 TERRESTRIAL MW NETWORK PERFORMANCE
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FIGURE 4: 2013/14 TERRESTRIAL SW NETWORK PERFORMANCE

Network	Availability Network	Interruptions
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2.3.2.5		Direct-to-Home	Satellite	Network

SENTECH operates a total network of seven satellite transponders to provide television and radio signal  
distribution services to broadcasters covering South Africa and sub-Saharan Africa.

2.3.2.5.1		Satellite	Television

The DTH television platform exceeded the set service level target of 99,80% by achieving an overall availability 
of 99,88% and a SENTECH availability of 99,88% during the period under review.

The only major DTH television service interruption during the 2013/14 financial year was caused by:

• Severe lighting strikes in December 2013 at the SENTECH satellite HUB, resulting in Ku-band RF  
switching unit failure affecting all services.

Figure	5	below: depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for DTH television platform 
services.

2.3.2.5.2		Satellite	Radio

The DTH Radio platform exceeded the set service level target of 99,80% by achieving an overall availability of 
99,95% and a SENTECH availability of 99,95% during the period under review.

FIGURE 5: 2013/14 dTH TELEVISION NETWORK PERFORMANCE
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Figure	6	below: depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for satellite radio services.

The only major DTH television service interruption for the 2013/14 financial year was caused by:

• Severe lighting strikes in December 2013 at the SENTECH satellite HUB, resulting in Ku-band RF  
switching unit failure affecting all services.

FIGURE 6: 2013/14 dTH RAdIO NETWORK PERFORMANCE
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FIGURE 7: 2013/14 VSAT NETWORK PERFORMANCE
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2.3.2.6		VSAT

SENTECH operates a VSAT HUB to provide various government institutions and individual customers with  
internet connectivity across the country. The VSAT platform performed below the service level target of 99,80% 
with an overall availability of 98,13% and a SENTECH availability of 98,15% for VSAT services, which were 
recorded for the period under review. The decline in network availability was due to fibre link breaks, resulting 
from cable theft between the HUB and the uplink facility and HUB maintenance.

Figure	7	below:	depicts network availability and associated service interruptions for VSAT services.

Major VSAT services interruptions for the year 2013/14 financial year were caused by:

• Contribution link breaks between the HUB and the uplink facility due to cable theft; and

• instability of critical components in the HUB leading to significant downtime.
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2.4  KEY NATIONAL PROJECTS
2.4.1  dTT PROJECT STATUS

The scope for the DTT rollout project for the 2013/14 financial year was to expand population coverage from 
80% to 84% in accordance with the ICASA frequency spectrum plan.

This objective required the installation of transmitter equipment and the upgrade of infrastructure at 64 transmitter  
stations. This is in addition to the sites that had been put on air during previous financial years, namely:

POPULATION COVERAGE NUMBER OF SITES

0% – 60% 47
60.01% – 80% 67
80.01% – 84% 64
ToTAl 178

The per site population contribution of the last mile signal distribution infrastructure is smaller and the cost of 
deployment is higher compared to earlier infrastructure in the DTT project, due to a scattered population spread 
in countryside and a need to install UHF antenna systems at those sites.

DTT Coverage status at the end of March 2014, is as shown in the table below.

REGULATEd ERP

ANNUAL TARGET ACHIEVEd TO dATE

% accumulated population coverage 84% 82.13%
% accumulated geographic coverage 58.91% 45.43%

The coverage map below depicts the DTT coverage situation at the end of March 2014.
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As part of the scope, new UHF antenna systems had to be installed at 18 existing stations. This aspect of the 
project resulted in extensive work being undertaken and some delays being experienced.

By the end of March 2014, a total of 46 stations were completed and put on air. Further more four stations were 
completed and commissioned but could not be activated due to their reliance on other stations for a programme 
feed. This resulted in SENTECH achieving a population coverage of 82.12% as per the ICASA frequency  
spectrum plan (85.10% SENTECH recommended power). This is broken down into provinces below:

MARCH 2014
MIGRATION STATUS

TARGET COMPLETEd

Limpopo 10 10
Mpumalanga 13 12
Gauteng 12 12
North West 16 15
Free State 13 13
KwaZulu-Natal 29 28
Eastern Cape 33 31
Western Cape 34 26
Northern Cape 18 7
ToTAl 178 154

The challenge experienced during this year was related to securing the services of contractors for civil,  
electrical and rigging requirements - especially given the complex nature of the operations and work that was 
to be done at remote sites.

Challenges experienced during the construction phase mainly pertained to community-related matters and  
inclement weather.

2.4.1.1		DTT	operating	Model

The commercial launch of DTT services is imminent as the June 2015 ITU analogue switch-off deadline is  
approaching. SENTECH is currently implementing a project to remodel its technical operations in preparation 
for the commercial launch of DTT services.

The current SENTECH analogue television operating model is too localised, multi-regional and decentralised, 
resulting in organisational complexities and duplication of systems. as well as resource utilisation.

SENTECH developed a globally integrated model for the DTT environment, in order to achieve centralised 
network control and operational efficiency. This operating model will facilitate standardisation, enterprise-wide 
integrated operations, nation-wide network visibility and management. The integrated operations model will 
maximise network support and management capabilities to exploit competitive business advantage. Below are 
some of the key elements of the new operating model:

• Improves network automation and redundancy to reduce human intervention;

• improves systems and human capabilities to reduce restoration time;

• enables strategic placement and the levelling of human resources utilisation;

• centralises network management to reduce personnel standby hours;

• improves assets security and third-party service  management capability; and

• standardises network solutions to reduce the spares inventory.
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2.4.1.2	 Network	Management	System	(NMS)	Implementation

The annual operating plan is aimed at addressing the requirements for an NMS solution, in line with the ISO  
Telecommunications Management Network Model of Fault, Configuration, Accounting, Performance and  
Security (FCAPS) Management. The ultimate objective of these requirements is to enable the following:

• NMS end-to-end monitoring and performance management solutions for DTT, analogue and DTH  
platforms; and

• optimisation in the monitoring of the legacy analogue network, integration into the digital environment 
and a central NMS solution.

The tender for the Network Monitoring Solution was issued and evaluated during the last quarter of the 2013/14 
financial year. The Network Monitoring Solution comprises the following key components:

•	 Central Inventory Management System: Providing the capability to maintain up-to-date records of the 
type, quantity, configuration and location of the devices and equipment in the SENTECH network;

•	 fault Management System: Providing the capability to detect, isolate and resolve potential faults in the 
network;

•	 performance Management System: Enabling automation of the management of the network KPIs,  
collection of performance data and an analysis thereof; and

•	 incident, Problem and Change Management System: Enabling delivery of a commercial grade IPC  
Management System with functions that enable integration into the SAP ERP system.

The process for analogue to digital conversion of current systems to an interim system was also completed 
during the period under review.

2.4.2  SABC LOW POWER PROJECT

The SENTECH/SABC Low Power project was initiated in 2008, to extend access to TV and radio services to 
areas where there is currently no TV/radio signal.

A target of 44 Low Power sites was set for the 2013/14 financial year. This target was reduced during  
November 2013, when the SABC notified SENTECH of their intention to cancel the project. The target was then 
adjusted to 27 sites. By 31 March 2014, some 18 out of the 27 sites were completed as indicated. Problems 
experienced that resulted in the revised total not being achieved include site acquisition issues, Eskom power 
implementation challenges and inclement weather during February and March 2014.
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The sites were rolled out across the various provinces as follows:

Eastern	Cape

PRIORITY 
NO. AREA TYPE 0F 

SITE
dISTRICT  
MUNICIPALITY

LOCAL  
MUNICIPALITY SERVICES

1 Matatele Self-help Alfred Nzo Matatele SABC 1, 2 & 3
2 MacClear Self-help Ukahlamba Elundeni SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus RSg
3 Alicedale New site Cacadu Makana SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Umhlobo Wenene FM

Western	Cape

PRIORITY 
NO. AREA TYPE 0F 

SITE
dISTRICT  
MUNICIPALITY

LOCAL  
MUNICIPALITY SERVICES

1 Calitzdorp Self-help Eden Kannaland RSg & Umhlobo Wenene FM
2 Betty’s Bay Self-help Overberg Overberg SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus SAFM & RSg
3 Langebaan Self-help Overberg Overberg SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus SAFM & RSg

4 Saldanha New site Eden Kannaland SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Umhlobo Wenene FM & 
RSg

Northern	Cape

PRIORITY 
NO. AREA TYPE 0F 

SITE
dISTRICT  
MUNICIPALITY

LOCAL  
MUNICIPALITY SERVICES

1 Carnarvon (SKA) Self-help Pixley ka Seme Kareeberg SABC 1, 2 & 3

2 Richmond Self-help Pixley ka Seme Ubuntu SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Umhlobo Wenene FM & 
RSg

North	West

PRIORITY 
NO. AREA TYPE 0F 

SITE
dISTRICT  
MUNICIPALITY

LOCAL  
MUNICIPALITY SERVICES

1 Disaneng New site Ngaka Modiri 
Molema Ratlou SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Motsweding FM

limpopo

PRIORITY 
NO. AREA TYPE 0F 

SITE
dISTRICT  
MUNICIPALITY

LOCAL  
MUNICIPALITY SERVICES

1 Mataung New site Capricorn Lepelle-Nkumpi SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Thobela FM
2 gafemane New site Mopani greater Letaba SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Thobela FM
3 Hlohlokwe New site Mopani Maruleng SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Thobela FM
4 Matangari (Makonde) New site Vhembe Thulamela SABC 1, 2 & 3 (2W) plus Phalaphala FM (10W)
5 Maphere (Sadwawa) New site Mopani Maruleng SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Thobela FM
6 ga-kgapane New site Mopani greater Letaba SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Thobela FM

7 Marothlong  
(Buffelsberg) New site Vhembe Makhado SABC 1, 2 & 3 plus Thobela FM

8 ga-Korante New site Mopani greater Letaba SABC 1, 2 & 3 (2W)

The remaining sites will be rolled out during the first half of the 2014/2015 financial year.
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2.4.3  THE FUNERAL OF FORMER PRESIdENT NELSON MANdELA

SENTECH was mandated to provide satellite connectivity and broadcast services for the state funeral of former 
President Nelson Mandela on 15 December 2013, from all event venues where government and other related 
activities were taking place as listed below:

• FNB stadium;

• Union Buildings;

• Waterkloof Air Force Base; and

• Qunu.

SENTECH was also mandated to do the installation and operation of media centre services that hosted  
international media houses during the event at three venues, namely Nasrec, the Union Buildings and Qunu.

The funeral broadcast infrastructure was required to aggregate content from the afore-mentioned venues and 
deliver content to South African citizens and the rest of the world. Due to the nature of its complexities and a 
very compressed timeframe, the project required concerted commitment to ensure timeous delivery.

SENTECH successfully delivered on the state mandate and facilitated broadcasting of the funeral events  
between 10 and 15 December 2013, with a total network availability of 99.99%.

2.4.4  CHAMPIONSHIP OF AFRICAN NATIONS (CHAN) TOURNAMENT

South Africa hosted the Championship of African Nations (CHAN) Tournament between 11 January and  
1 February 2014. 

As part of the Department of Communications’ (DoC) obligations, SENTECH provided the satellite  
communication infrastructure required by the DoC for broadcasting the CHAN, to be hosted at stadiums in Cape 
Town, Athlone, Polokwane and Mangaung.

The requirements entailed the supply and installation of 4.8m satellite antennas for contribution feeds at the 
four identified stadiums, with all uplink designs and builds being identical. All electronic equipment, with the  
exception of the power amplifier equipment, was housed in a container and a programme link was installed 
between the container and the SABC’s outside broadcast facility.

Encryption of the satellite signal was done, using BISS-E, with support and maintenance from SENTECH’s  
operations staff throughout the event. 

The overall availability was calculated and compared to the World Cup 2010 and AFCON 2013 performances on 
uplink data. The comparison showed that SENTECH performed better during CHAN 2014 than during the World 
Cup 2010, as it surpassed its World Cup performance by 0.5%.
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2.5  NEW TECHNOLOGIES
2.5.1  dVB-T2 LITE

SENTECH provided a DVB-T2 Lite network, consisting of two transmitter sites for mobile TV trial purposes. The 
DVB-T2 Lite trial run commenced in the latter half of the 2013/14 financial year. This is the first DVB-T2 Lite 
transmission in Africa and one of the first in the world.

The objective of the trial was to evaluate this technology on a technical basis, as well as for possible future 
products and markets.

During the 2014/15 financial year, SENTECH will further investigate other new technologies and participate in 
various industry trials with digital radio technologies (DAB+ and DRM).

2.5.2  COVERAGE INFORMATION SYSTEM

SENTECH established a coverage information system during the period under review. This tool was developed 
to provide all coverage related location-based information to a user during migration. The tool is available on 
three different platforms and can be used by the entire population during the analogue to digital television  
migration:

PLATFORM HOW TO ACCESS IT
Internet portal Go to cispub.sentech.co.za via an internet browser
Short SMS service SMS the keyword, Findme to 35621
USSD service Dial *120*848# from a mobile device

The national network maps for all SABC radio services are also included in the internet portal.
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3.1.1		Introduction

The Board recognises the need to manage the enterprise with integrity and in accordance with generally  
accepted corporate practices. As a state-owned company (SOC), SENTECH is required to comply with  
applicable legislation and a number of regulations, including but not limited to, the SENTECH Act, 1996 (Act 
No. 63 of 1996) as amended, the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended, the 
Treasury Regulations, the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), the Government Protocol on Corporate 
Governance and the Shareholder Compact.

The company further supports and endorses the guiding principles of the Code of Corporate Practices and 
Conduct as articulated in King III, to the extent that it is not in conflict with the company’s primary legislative 
documents, as stated above. The company is continuing to design and implement the necessary governance 
systems to ensure compliance.

3.1.2		ownership

In accordance with the SENTECH Act, 1996 (Act No. 63 of 1996) as amended, ownership of the company is 
vested in the state as the sole Shareholder, as represented by the Minister of Communications (the Minister) 
who is defined as the Executive Authority in terms of the PFMA.

3.1.3		Structure	of	the	Board

In terms of the SENTECH Act, the Board shall consist of three executive directors and at least four  
non-executive directors, who are all appointed by the Minister. The executive directors shall be the persons 
performing the functions of a Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operations Officer and Chief Financial Officer and 
shall constitute the company’s Executive Committee (EXCO).

3.1.4		Role	of	the	Shareholder

In terms of the PFMA, the Minister of Communications is the Executive Authority of the company.

3.1.5		Role	of	the	Board	of	Directors

In terms of the SENTECH Act, read in conjunction with the company’s Articles of Association, the Board is  
vested with the management and control of the business of the company. The powers and functions of the Board 
include, but are not limited to (i) the approval of the strategic planning of the Executive Committee, including 
budgets, pricing policy, financing arrangements and policy; (ii) the institution of the necessary control measures 
to ensure that the company is managed and operated in accordance with sound business principles; (iii) the 
organisation of the affairs of the company as far as possible in business units; (iv) the setting of criteria for  
management of performance; and (v) the approval of any material amendments in the manner of calculating 
tariffs and the determination of profit margins for the different services and operations of the company. In terms 
of the PFMA, the Board is the Accounting Authority of the company. 

3.1.6		Role	of	the	Executive	Committee	(EXCo)	

The EXCO of the company is tasked, in terms of both the SENTECH Act and the company’s Articles of  
Association, with managing the day-to-day affairs of the company. On 1 April 2011, the Board resolved that, in 

3.1  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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order to strengthen the effectiveness of EXCO, executives in charge of Business Services, the CEO’s Office,  
Corporate Services, Human Resources and Technology must be permanent invitees to EXCO meetings.  
During the period under review, the company had no more than two Executive Committee members at any one 
point in time, except for the period from 1 September 2013 to date. At the beginning of the financial year, EXCO  
consisted of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operations Officer. The Chief Financial Officer was appointed 
on 1 September 2013, hence EXCO was fully constituted as from 1 September to date.

3.1.7		Role	of	the	Company	Secretary

The role of the Company Secretary is to advise directors, both individually and collectively, on their powers, 
duties and responsibilities in compliance with the SENTECH Act, 1996 (Act No. 63 of 1996) as amended, 
the PFMA, the Treasury Regulations, the Shareholder’s Compact and the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 71 
of 2008), Government Protocol on Corporate Governance, King III and other applicable legislation and best 
practice. The directors have unrestricted access to the Company Secretary and other officials in the Company 
Secretariat.

3.1.8		Composition	of	the	Board

For the period under review and as at the date of this report, the composition of the company’s Board was as 
follows:

NAME POSITION START dATE dATE TERM ENdEd

Mr Thabo Mongake*
Chairperson 1 August 2012 -
Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 -

Mr Paris Mashile** Non-executive Director 1 March 2011 28 February 2014
Ms Leah Khumalo** Non-executive Director 1 June 2010 31 May 2013
Mr Sipho Mjwara# Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 31 July 2013
Mr Stephen Molala* Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 -
M Xoliswa Daku* Non-executive Director 1 November 2013 -
Ms Reitumetse Huntley* Non-executive Director 1 November 2013 -
Ms Ntombizodwa Mbele* Non-executive Director 1 November 2013 -
Dr Setumo Mohapi* Chief Executive Officer 1 November 2010 -
Ms Rudzani Rasikhinya* Chief Financial Officer 1 September 2013 -
Mr Kganki Matabane* Chief Operating Officer 1 July 2012 -

Mr Pitso Mokoena
Acting Company Secretary 31 January 2013 30 June 2013
Acting Company Secretary 17 January 2014 -

Ms Mamokete Ramoshaba# Company Secretary 1 July 2013 17 January 2014

* Current Board Members          # Resigned           ** Term ended

3.1.9		Board	Charter

The Board is also governed by a Charter, which provides a concise overview of the role, powers, functions,  
duties and responsibilities of the directors, both collectively and individually. The Board Charter was reviewed  
and approved by the Board on 30 October 2013. The Board determined that, based on the Articles of  
Association, the Shareholder’s Compact and applicable legislation, its main functions and responsibilities were 
as follows:
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• Giving strategic direction to the Group, in line with government’s objectives, and ensuring that SENTECH 
remains a sustainable and viable business. The strategic objectives are set out in the Annual Corporate 
Plan, submitted to the Department of Communications and the National Treasury;

• preparing and approving corporate plans, annual budgets, annual reports and financial statements;

• effectively leading, controlling and managing the SENTECH business, subject to the provisions of the 
SENTECH Act; the SENTECH Amendment Act; the Shareholder’s Compact; the Companies Act; the 
PFMA and other applicable legislation;

• monitoring and evaluating implementation, by the Executive Management, of the Board’s strategies and 
performance objectives, as set out in the Corporate Plan and Shareholder’s Compact;

• ensuring that the company is managed effectively and in accordance with corporate governance best 
practice and the highest ethical standards;

• taking responsibility for the risk management process, including the system of internal controls and  
ensuring that it is effective, efficient and transparent; and

• regularly assessing the performance and effectiveness of the Board as a whole, as well as the  
individual directors, including the Chairperson of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, committees 
of the Board and the chairpersons of the various committees.

3.1.10		Board	Membership	and	Meeting	Attendance

In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation. as adapted, the Board shall meet at least four times a year.  
Additional meetings are convened as and when necessary.

During the period under review, the Board held four scheduled board meetings, one strategy session and five 
special meetings.

Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013 2014
04 APR 29 APR 31 MAY 12 JUN 29 JUL 30 OCT 13 dEC 07 FEB 26 FEB 14 MAR

Mr T Mongake          

Mr P Mashile          n/a
Ms L Khumalo    n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mr SJ Mjwara      n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mr S Molala          

Ms X Daku n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a    

Ms RJ Huntley n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a    

Ms N Mbele n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a    

Dr S Mohapi          

Mr K Matabane          

Ms R Rasikhinya n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a     

 Present          * Special Board Meeting           Absent or submitted an apology          n/a  Director resigned/term ended or not yet appointed.

3.1.11		External	Auditors

The company conducted a tender process for the appointment of external auditors and the successful  
candidate was Rakoma and Associates Inc. The Shareholder, in consultation with the Auditor-General, approved 
the appointment of Rakoma and Associates Inc. as external auditors of SENTECH (SOC) Limited and its  
subsidiaries, with effect from the date of the Annual General Meeting held on 25 September 2013.
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3.1.12		Code	of	Ethics

The Company has a consolidated Code of Ethics which addresses, inter alia, the following matters:

• Behaviour and conduct;

• fraud;

• conflict of interest; and

• declaration of gifts from suppliers and customers.

3.1.13		Directors’	Induction	and	Training

The Board has an induction and development practise. New directors are subject to an induction, which  
covers the following: SENTECH’s strategic objectives, financial and operational status and corporate governance  
practices. In addition, the Company Secretary provides new directors with a ‘Board Manual’, which is a  
collation of applicable legislation, policies and regulations; business plans and other information relating to the  
SENTECH business; and functions of the Board. During the period under review, the directors were provided 
with director training by IOD and other institutions on several subjects, such as chairmanship, directorship,  
social and ethics training and IT governance.

3.1.14	 Committees	of	the	Board

In order to properly discharge its responsibilities and duties, the Board has delegated certain responsibilities 
to various board committees. However, the creation of these committees does not reduce the directors’ overall 
responsibilities. During the period under review, the Board organised itself in terms of various committees. The 
Board retained most committees, which constitute the following: the Audit and Risk Committee, the Nominations 
and Remuneration Committee, the Social and Ethics Committee and the Policy and Regulatory Coordination 
Committee. The Board dissolved the Internal Policy (Interim) Committee on 17 February 2014.

3.1.14.1	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	

The Audit Committee was created and constituted in terms of sections 76 and 77 of the PFMA and Regulation 
27.1.1 of the Treasury Regulations. The purpose of the committee is to review the following:

• Oversight of integrated reporting;

• effectiveness of internal audit;

• recommending the appointment of the external auditor and overseeing the external audit process;

• review and recommend the annual financial statements, as well as the accompanying reports to the 
Board for approval;

• ensure Compliance with PFMA, Treasury Regulations and other legislation;

• review the arrangements of the company by which staff members may, in confidence and with total  
anonymity, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or any other 
matters;

• oversight of the company’s risk management, including but not limited to oversight of the development 
and implementation of the company’s risk frame-work and strategy; and

• ensure compliance with PFMA, the Treasury Regulations and other legislation with respect to matters 
related to the overall management of risk within the company.
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The Shareholder appointed the following directors as committee members: Mr Paris Mashile (re-appointment) 
and Mr Stephen Molala. In addition, the Shareholder reappointed Ms Joy Masemola as Chairperson of the 
Committee. During the period under review, the Board appointed Mr Molala and Mr Mjwara as Audit and Risk 
Committee members with effect from 12 June 2013. Due to the resignation of Mr Mjwara and the appointment 
of new directors with the relevant expertise to the Committee, the Board reorganised the committees and, as a 
result, the committee membership of the Audit and Risk Committee comprised (as at the date of this report) Ms 
Xoliswa Daku (member), Ms Ntombizodwa Mbele (member) and Ms Joy Masemola (Chairperson).

The Committee held six meetings during the year under review.

Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013 2014
22 APR 29 MAY 18 JUL 23 OCT 24 JAN 21 FEB

Ms J Masemola      

Mr P Mashile      

Ms S Molala n/a n/a    n/a
Ms X Daku n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Ms N Mbele n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Ms L Khumalo   n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mr J Mjwara n/a n/a  n/a n/a n/a

 Present          n/a director resigned or not yet appointed.

The external auditors attended committee meetings and had unrestricted access to all committees of the Board, 
dealing with audit and/or risk issues of the company. In addition, the Executive Directors of the Executive: Risk 
and Executive: Internal Audit attend committee meetings by permanent invitation.

3.1.14.2		Policy	and	Regulatory	Coordination	Committee	

The Committee was created to broaden the scope of the functions of the Technology Committee and ensure  
coordination between policy, regulation and technology in the development and implementation of the  
company’s strategy. The purpose of the committee is as follows:

• Advising and guiding the Board with regard to the company strategy, including but not limited to the  
Technology Strategy, in response to National Policy, Shareholder Priorities and Programmes; as well as 
the ICT regulatory environment. In addition. the Committee is tasked with the following:

- Strategic	 Alignment: Ensuring that SENTECH’s Technology Strategy, its development and  
implementation are aligned with the business objectives; ensuring that the IT Strategy responds to 
good corporate governance.

- Trends:	Understanding global developmental trends in the policy and regulatory environment and 
ensuring that SENTECH’s Development Strategy takes them into consideration as such. SENTECH’s 
Technology Strategies must be aligned with trends in the communication industry.

- Strategic	 Planning	 and	 Scanning: Strategic scanning of technology. service trends and  
developments within the communication industry is to be carried out on a regular basis. The Policy 
and Regulatory Strategy, as well as the Technology Strategy of the company need to be revised 
and developed as a published document for approval by the Board on an annual basis. Defining the 
research agenda.

- Strategic	 Implementation:	Reviewing the implementation of the Technology Strategy, as well as 
regulatory and policy implementation to be found in the quarterly reports.
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- Technology	 Suppliers	 and	 Partners: Overseeing technology/partner selection processes to  
ensure that good governance is embodied in such processes.

- Risk	Management:	Review the implementation of risk management on matters of technology, policy 
and regulatory environments.

During the period under review, Mr Mjwara resigned and Mr Mashile’s term ended. When the Board reorganised 
the membership of the committees on 17 February 2014, the Policy and Regulatory Coordination Committee 
membership comprised the following directors: Ms Xoliswa Daku (Chairperson), Ms Reitumentse J Huntley and 
Mr Paris Mashile. As at the date of this report, the committee membership comprised Ms Xoliswa Daku and Ms 
Reitumentse J Huntley.

The Committee held five meetings during the year under review.

Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013 2014
25 APR 17 JUL 22 OCT 23 JAN 20 FEB

Mr J Mjwara   n/a n/a n/a
Mr T Mongake     n/a
Mr P Mashile     

Ms X Daku n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Ms RJ Huntley n/a n/a n/a n/a 

 Present          n/a director resigned or not yet appointed.

3.1.14.3		Social	and	Ethics	Committee	

This committee was created to fulfil the company’s obligations in terms of section 72(4) of the Companies Act. In 
addition, the committee initially took over the functions of the HRA committee. Since the formation of the Social 
and Ethics Committee, the role of the committee has been to assist the Board as follows:

• Monitor and assess SENTECH’s compliance with regard to the ten principles of the United Nations  
Global Compact Principles pertaining to corruption;

• to review and approve the framework, policies and procedures to manage ethics in SENTECH;

• review and approve the framework, policies and procedures to manage SENTECH’s Human Resources 
with due regard for employment and labour laws, employment equity and skills development;

• review and monitor SENTECH’s progress towards the achievement of its Broad-Based Black  
Economic Empowerment and Transformation objectives, including all seven elements of the DTI  
scorecard framework;

• review and monitor SENTECH’s policies and procedures to assess compliance with applicable health, 
safety and environmental laws and regulatory requirements;

• review and monitor the impact of SENTECH’s health, safety and environmental practices on its  
products, services, employees, customers and the communities in which it operates;

• review SENTECH’s sustainability practices and processes relative to the business imperative, as well as 
other best practices concerning sustainability; and

• monitor the quality of stakeholder relations, with particular emphasis on customers, employees, suppliers,  
communities and government relationships.

During the period under review, Mr Mjwara, resigned and Ms Khumalo’s term ended on 31 May 2013.  
Subsequent to Ms Khumalo’s term ending on 31 May 2013, the Board appointed Mr Mashile as Chairperson of 
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the Committee. When the Board reorganised the committee memberships on 17 February 2014 (subsequent to 
the appointment of new directors) and, as at the date of this report, the Social and Ethics Committee comprised 
the following members: Ms Reitumetse J Huntley (Chairperson), Mr Steve Molala and Mr Thabo Mongake. 

The Committee held six meetings during the year under review.

Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013 2014
22 APR 17 JUL 23 OCT 24 JAN 21 FEB 28 MAR

Ms L Khumalo  n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mr S Mjwara    n/a n/a n/a
Mr M Molala      

Ms RJ Huntley n/a n/a n/a n/a  

Mr T Mongake n/a n/a n/a n/a  

Mr P Mashile n/a    n/a n/a

 Present           n/a director resigned or not yet appointed.

3.1.14.4		Nominations	and	Remuneration	Committee	

The Committee was established to take over some of the functions of the former HRA Committee, with the  
following additions: 

• Assist with the recruitment of executive directors, with regard to such factors as the committee  
considers appropriate, including judgment, skill, diversity, experience in business and other  
organisations of a comparable size; the interplay between the candidate’s experience and the experience 
of other board members; and the extent to which the candidate would be a desirable addition to the Board 
and any of the Board committees;

• identify directors qualified to fill vacancies on Board committees and make recommendations to the 
Board accordingly, with regard to such factors as the Committee considers appropriate, including the 
Terms of Reference of the particular Board Committee; the director’s experience; as well as the interplay 
between the director’s experience and the experience of other Committee members;

• review and recommend to the Board the relevant criteria necessary to measure the performance of  
Executive Management in discharging their functions and responsibilities;

• establish procedures for the Committee to oversee the evaluation of the performance of the Board and 
each individual director, including an assessment of whether each director devoted sufficient time to the 
duties entrusted to such director;

• ensure that the performance of members of the Board is reviewed annually; and

• ensure that fair competitive reward strategies and programmes are in place to facilitate the recruitment, 
motivation and retention of high-performance staff at all levels in support of realising corporate objectives 
and safeguarding stakeholder interest.

During the period under review, Mr Mashile’s term ended on 28 February 2014. Subsequent to the  
reorganisation of the Committees by the Board and as at the date of this report, the membership of the  
Committee comprised Mr Molala (Chairperson), Mr Mongake and Ms Mbele. The Executive: Human Resources 
and EXCO members attend meetings by permanent invitation. 

The Committee held eight meetings during the period under review, some of which dealt with Interviews for the 
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer positions.
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Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013 2014

17 APR 25 JUN 22 MAY 19 JUL 22 OCT 23 JAN 20 FEB 28 MAR

Mr S Molala        

Mr T Mongake        

Mr P Mashile        n/a
Ms N Mbele n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a  

 Present          n/a director resigned or not yet appointed.

3.1.14.5		Internal	Policy	(Interim)	Committee

The Committee was established on an interim basis to facilitate and oversee the review of the company’s  
internal policies, in line with the company’s strategic objectives with regard to internal operations. The purpose 
of the Committee was as follows:

The reviewing of existing policies and advising on the compilation of new policies, where a need arises. The 
issues for consideration in performing this task are as follows:

• Whether a rule, procedure and/or guideline is required;

• how the proposed policy document impacts on existing policy;

• the purpose and objective of the policy, including establishing the scope of the areas the policy will cover;

• what legislative or other external regulations impact on the policy proposal;

• consideration of whether the policy accords with the company’s Strategic Plan;

• establish the scope of the implementation needs, resources needed, impact on other areas and  
associated procedural issues;

• identification of best practice guidelines and standards pertaining to the industry, government and/or 
higher education;

• identification of the implications for other policies, inter-relationships and boundaries;

• investigating any particular policy or implementation issues that may need addressing before the full 
policy could be developed; and

• making recommendations to the Board on proposed amendments to existing policies and newly formed 
policies.

During the period under review, the Committee was dissolved by the Board on 17 February 2014. 

The Committee held two meetings during the period under review.

Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013

19 JUL 24 OCT
Mr T Mongake   

Mr P Mashile  

Mr J Mjwara  n/a

 Present             absent          n/a director resigned or not yet appointed.
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3.2 HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
3.2.1  PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

SENTECH started a crucial journey of becoming a high-performance organisation, focused on better customer 
services, more effective and efficient operations and a new level of service delivery. In support of this journey, 
an integrated performance and development management system was successfully implemented at executive 
and management level.

While the negotiations with organised labour are continuing, employees in the Bargaining Unit received training 
on performance management, which will continue to remain a focal area at all levels.

3.2.2  JOB EVALUATION 

In alignment with the strategic direction of the business and as part of a broader set of strategic human resources  
initiatives, related to reward, remuneration and talent management, a job evaluation exercise was conducted  
and completed pertaining to all SENTECH positions. This exercise resulted in new job grading scales for  
SENTECH, which were approved by the Board for implementation.

3.2.3  LEAdERSHIP dEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The success of SENTECH is dependent on the quality of its leadership across all levels. SENTECH partnered 
with the Gordon Institute of Business Science to deliver a customised Leadership Development Programme, 
which is to be launched during June 2014 for executives, as well as employees at senior and middle-management  
level. This programme will enhance leadership capabilities, encourage high levels of employee engagement 
and drive performance and productivity in the organisation.

The effectiveness of SENTECH’s leaders was also measured, using a 360-degree leadership effectiveness 
assessment. The feedback derived from the assessment results will be used for development and executive 
coaching.

3.2.4  EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

SENTECH believes that employee engagement is an important measure that helps the company to manage and 
develop employees and improve business growth. The 2013/14 Engagement Survey indicated that the overall 
engagement and satisfaction level was 62%, which is higher than the previous 50% rating and commonly used 
60% benchmark at which employee satisfaction levels are generally regarded as reaching satisfactory levels. 

3.2.5  HEALTH ANd SAFETY 

Health and safety in the workplace continues to be one of the strategic focal areas, with a number of initiatives 
and programmes having been implemented to ensure compliance with the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 
as well as to create a safe and healthy workplace for all employees, contractors, customers and the public at 
large. 

Key initiatives and programmes that were implemented to improve health and safety include the following:

• The development of an overarching health and safety framework to manage and monitor occupational 
health and safety in the workplace;

• Conducting health risk assessments at all major sites to identify risks. The corrective measures to  
minimise risks were incorporated into the company’s medical surveillance programme, so as to ensure 
effective health and safety management;
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• Radio frequency wave testing was conducted at major SENTECH sites to determine exposure levels of  
employees and ensure compliance to international radio frequency standards (ICNIRP). SENTECH will 
ensure that all precautionary measures are put in place to ensure that the exposure limit of employees and 
communities does not exceed the ICNIRP limit, as determined by international standards and South African 
laws; and

• A Medical Surveillance Programme was developed to ensure that identified health risks are effectively  
managed, in order to minimise occupational illness.

3.2.6  EMPLOYEE WELLNESS

The company partnered with an external service provider to offer assistance to employees who need wellness 
support and counselling. During the period under review, a total of eight employees received counselling to  
address the following challenges: stress, depression, anxiety and trauma. The service is also extended to 
family members of SENTECH employees. Overall, 33.2% of SENTECH’s members are currently on the chronic 
health programme, which is fully paid for by the company-subsidised medical aid. These programmes include 
the management of HIV and Aids, diabetes and hypertension as the most common ailments - but cater for other 
chronic illnesses as well.

3.2.7  HUMAN RESOURCE POLICIES

To ensure that SENTECH attracts, retains and recognises talent in support of its business objectives, HR 
embarked on a process of reviewing and developing all HR internal policies. The Reward and Remuneration 
Strategy and the Incentives Policy were of the most crucial initiatives developed during the period under review. 
There were also other administrative policies developed to ensure effective people management.

3.2.8  HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

3.2.8.1		Personnel	Remuneration	by	Salary	Band

At the end of the period under review, SENTECH had 530 permanent employees, of which Top Management  
accounts for 5.99%, Senior Management for 7.39%, Professionals for 31.66% and Skilled Employees for 
45.43%. The table below is an indication of personnel costs and employee numbers.

LEVEL PERSONNEL 
REMUNERATION

% OF PERSONNEL 
ExPENdITURE 

TOTAL 
PERSONNEL

NO. OF 
EMPLOYEES

AVERAGE 
PERSONNEL COST 

PER EMPLOYEE

Top management 16 379 203 5.99 11 1 489 018
Senior management 20 205 595 7.39 18 1 122 533
Professional qualified 86 554 471 31.66 104 832 255
Skilled 124 188 906 45.43 293 423 853
Semi-skilled 17 738 221 6.49 65 272 896
Unskilled 8 315 532 3.04 39 213 219
TOTAL 273 381 928 100 530 515 815
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3.2.8.2		Employment	and	Vacancies

Attracting top talent remained a key driver of the Human Resources agenda during 2013/14. Focused  
recruitment was a key issue and included a blend of external appointments and internal promotions to  
ensure a well balanced team. Although there are still a number of vacancies, these are mainly as a result of  
terminations for various reasons, as explained in the tables below. A significant number of appointments were 
made internally, in order to uplift internal talent. The table below depicts the employment profile and vacancies 
as at the end of March 2014.

PROGRAMME
2012/13 
NO. OF 

EMPLOYEES

2013/14 
APPROVEd 

POSTS

2013/14 
NO. OF 

EMPLOYEES

2013/14 
VACANCIES

% OF 
PLANNEd 

VACANCIES

Top management 9 14 11 3 21%
Senior management 19 28 18 10 36%
Professional qualified 102 125 104 21 17%
Skilled 282 327 293 34 10%
Semi-skilled 70 71 65 6 8%
Unskilled 40 48 39 9 19%
TOTAL 522 613 530 83 14%

Although the vacancies totalled 14%, the company prioritised the filling of vacancies that were crucial during the 
period under review, in order to align these with the budget. The company also employed a total of 43 temporary 
staff members for specific projects during the period under review, as well as to fill some of the vacant positions 
while recruiting permanent placements.

3.2.8.3	 Employment	Change

The table below depicts the employee turnover and the recruitment profile of SENTECH. 

SALARY 
BANd

EMPLOYMENT AT 
BEGINNING OF 

PERIOd APPOINTMENTS TERMINATIONS
INTERNAL 

MOVEMENTS
EMPLOYMENT AT 
ENd OF PERIOd

Top  
management

9 4 3 1 11

Senior  
management

19 4 4 -1 18

Professional 
qualified

102 11 9 0 104

Skilled 282 38 28 1 293
Semi-skilled 70 3 7 -1 65
Unskilled 40 1 2 0 39
TOTAL 522 61 53 0 530
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3.2.8.4		Reason	for	employees	leaving

SENTECH’s turnover rate for 2013/14 was 10%, comprising 6% resignations and 4% Involuntary terminations 
(retirement, dismissals and death). 

SALARY BANd NUMBER
% OF TOTAL NO. OF STAFF 

LEAVING

Death 2 0.38
Resignation 33 6.23
Dismissal 3 0.57
Retirement 15 2.83
TOTAL 53 10

3.2.8.5		Employment	Equity	

SENTECH is fully committed to transformation and reflecting the diverse demographics of South African society 
in its workforce. The company made slight progress in the achievement of its employment equity targets for 
2013/14, with black females serving in various categories, as do employees with a disability. The need to further 
deliver on targets, particularly at Middle and Junior Management level and also persons with a disability will 
remain a key priority in 2014.

The table below details the company employment Equity profile.

OCCUPATIONAL LEVELS
MALE FEMALE

TOTALAFRICAN COLOUREd INdIAN WHITE dISABILITY AFRICAN COLOUREd INdIAN WHITE dISABILITY

Top management 6 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 11
Senior management 9 1 0 1 0 6 0 0 1 0 18
Professionally qualified,  Experienced 
specialist & Mid-management 39 5 3 36 0 13 2 1 5 0 104

Skilled technical & Academical 
qualified workers, Junior management, 
Supervisors, Foremen & Superintendants

104 12 10 57 3 88 5 4 8 2 293

Semi-skilled & Discretionary decision 
making 26 2 0 1 0 22 5 1 8 0 65

Unskilled & Defined decision making 32 4 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 39

TOTAL PERMANENT 216 24 14 96 3 135 12 6 22 2 530

3.2.9  SKILLS dEVELOPMENT

SENTECH is committed to promoting a learning culture that enables employees to develop and grow to reach 
their full potential. A total of 324 employees were trained, based on the Skills Plan, as well as business need 
requirements.

A Skills Audit was conducted in order to enhance training and development interventions in all functional staff 
positions. This included a skills assessment and qualification check. The company achieved a participation rate 
of 90% in the skills assessment and 70% in the qualification inventory. This process yielded a qualified focus on 
individual development needs and competency areas to be addressed via training interventions in the 2014/15  
financial year. Both in-house and externally-sourced training from relevant training providers ensured that training  
delivery was cost-effective and added significant value to the organisation.
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learning	Programmes

SENTECH spent R6.6 million on learning activities in 2013/14, of which R5.81 million (88.1%) was spent on 
previously disadvantaged individuals. A further R1 354 701.44 was spent on internship programmes to provide 
learners with the opportunity to gain skills by working at SENTECH. In total, 32 learners formed part of the pro-
gramme, of which 20 were appointed permanently by SENTECH.

The total Skills Development (SD) expenditure constituted 2.4% of the payroll expenditure. 

3.2.9.1		Training	Costs

LEVEL TRAINING  
ExPENdITURE

TRAINING  
ExPENdITURE 

AS A % OF 
PERSONNEL 

COSTS

NUMBER OF 
TRAINING 

INTERVENTIONS

NUMBER OF 
EMPLOYEES 

TRAINEd

AVERAGE 
TRAINING COST 
PER EMPLOYEE

Top management R24 346.76 0.15% 5 5 R4 869.35
Senior 
management

R59 449.43 0.29% 27 19 R3 128.92

Professional 
qualified

R234 894.78 0.27% 63 43 R5 462.67

Skilled R4 353 496.94 3.51% 611 199 R21 876.87
Semi-skilled R318 327.97 1.79% 59 36 R8 842.44
Unskilled R255 318.52 3.07% 42 22 R11 605.38
TOTAL R5 245 834.40 1.92% 807 324 R16 190.85

3.2.9.2		Institutional	Collaboration

SENTECH also partnered with the University of Pretoria and the University of the Witwatersrand to assist 
the company in meeting its various needs such as research and development, pipeline development via the  
sponsorship of undergraduate and postgraduate students, as well as improving SENTECH’s in-house technical 
training programmes.

3.2.10  LABOUR RELATIONS, dISCIPLINE ANd MISCONdUCT

The organisation is committed to fostering a strong relationship with organised labour. The Communications 
Workers Union (CWU) is currently the recognised union at SENTECH, with 74.9% of SENTECH employees 
forming part of the Bargaining Unit. Salary increases and changes to Conditions of Employment were negotiated 
via a collective bargaining agreement process.

SENTECH recognises the fact that every employee is entitled to fair labour practices. The company continues 
to apply progressive discipline as opposed to punitive measures. SENTECH believes that progressive discipline  
ensures fair, equal and justifiable treatment of all employees with regard to unacceptable behaviour and  
repercussions resulting from such behaviour, and eventually assists the organisation in retaining employees.
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3.3  SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
SENTECH’s Supply Chain Management (SCM), as promulgated in the Public Finance Management Act, 
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended, exists to give effect to section 217 of the South African Constitution.  
SENTECH’s commitment to Supply Chain Management governance is reflected in its application of National 
Treasury Regulations, even though SENTECH, as a schedule 3B entity, is exempted from all the requirements 
of the regulations.

In this regard, SCM ensures that SENTECH delivers on its mandate to roll out the digital terrestrial television 
network infrastructure and to provide a high standard of service to its clients and the people of South Africa. To 
this end, SENTECH embarked on various activities to ensure effectiveness, efficiency and compliance in the 
SCM Department.

Part of the process was the intervention to improve and strengthen the SCM Processes, focusing mainly on 
other SCM elements:

3.3.1  dEMANd MANAGEMENT  

A Capital Expenditure (CAPEX) demand schedule, with detailed assessment of various SENTECH CAPEX  
requirements, was identified for the 2013/14 financial year. The Demand Plan was 78% implemented in the first 
year of introduction. The late implementation of the Business Partnership Model at SCM was due to recruitment 
issues that impacted on the implementation percentage.

3.3.2  ACqUISITION MANAGEMENT

The implementation of term contracts, supply contracts, panel agreements and framework agreements was 
instrumental in ensuring efficiency and effectiveness in delivering the required goods and services timeously.

With the improved procurement processes, SCM managed to accomplish the statistical achievements indicated below:

• Some 55 tenders were advertised, of which two were Requests for Information and Expressions of  
Interest, with 34 tenders awarded, 13 cancelled and six still under evaluation by the end of March 2014;

• some 3 255 purchase orders were issued;

• an estimated 76% of infrastructure projects (to a Rand value of R310 million out of total expenditure of 
R407 million) were awarded to Level 1 to 4 BBBEE companies (excluding international suppliers;

• the Delegation of Authority was reviewed, approved and implemented during July 2013; and further 
amendments were approved by the Accounting Authority in February 2014 to accommodate the new 
organisational structure; and

• reduced irregular expenditure by approximately 45% compared to the previous financial year.

3.3.3  LOGISTICS MANAGEMENT

In the 2013/14 financial year, an extra effort was made to improve the company’s logistics function, which saw 
SENTECH achieving the following milestones:

• Introduction of a process aimed at expediting the purchase order function;

• documented and implemented the logistics procedures, which ensured proper inventory management 
processes, including the receiving and distribution of goods and services;

• the establishment of the Disposal Committee;

• an Inventory Demand Plan was compiled;

• the obsolete inventory was disposed of; and

• improved the goods-in-transit processes and recording thereof.
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Despite the above interventions and achievements, SCM still faces various challenges in respect of insufficient 
human resources and the appropriate skills necessary to execute the SCM mandate of ensuring a professional, 
excellent, effective and efficient service to facilitate the continuous flow of goods and services to, in turn, enable 
SENTECH to achieve its objectives.

Going forward, SCM will continue improving on the above and furthermore focus on the following:

• Capacitate SCM with relevant resources and skills, using the current skills assessment results;

• develop and implement an Operational Expenditure Demand Plan;

• the implementation of an updated and reliable Supplier Register, aligned with SENTECH’s Demand Plan;

• implementation of a proper Contract Register to eliminate and manage irregular expenditure;

• developing an Inventory Management Policy;

• initiating a stores facility improvement project;

• the mapping of demand and acquisition procedures and processes; and

• developing a Communication Plan to ensure the proper implementation of all the new processes.
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3.4  CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT
SENTECH’s Corporate Social Investment (CSI) Strategy is guided by the principle of promoting universal  
access to, and sustainable development of communities via ICT interventions. Within this premise, the strategy 
takes into cognisance the fact that an effectively designed and implemented CSI programme plays an important 
role in the company’s contribution to sustainable development.

In terms of the Company’s CSI strategy, SENTECH endeavours to focus its resources in the ICT sector with  
special emphasis on connecting institutions of learning. This relates to providing VSAT connectivity to primary 
and secondary schools in rural and/or underserviced areas. Within this strategy, and in instances where the 
school does not have computer facilities, the CSI provision is further extended to computer hardware and  
software.

These Computer Labs are equipped with fully functional computers; classroom renovation with furniture and 
VSAT internet connectivity. The period of sponsored internet connectivity is five years, upon which the Depart-
ment of Education and/or the municipality in the area will take over the account. This is agreed upon prior to 
installing the Computer Labs. SENTECH also continued with its investment in Mindset Learn.

ACTIVITIES & INTERVENTIONS 
(HOW WE WILL ACHIEVE IT)

PERFORMANCE 
INdICATOR 

(HOW WE WILL MEASURE 
PERFORMANCE)

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

ACTUAL TARGET VARIANCE

Enable broadband connectivity to public institution  
outside the Dinaledi Schools Programme

Number of schools connected 11 14 -3

Due to challenges faced regarding the identification of schools with related stakeholders, some of the i-Lab 
projects listed below, were not completed within the 2013/2014 financial year but will still be implemented:

• Leratswana Secondary School - Free State;

• Leifo Iziko Combined School - Free State;

• Nodineka High School - KwaZulu-Natal.

The sites were rolled out across the various provinces as follows:

SITE NAME PROVINCE AREA dISTRICT MUNICIPALITY LOCAL 
MUNICIPALITY

Môreson Intermediate Northern Cape Niekerkshoop Pixley Ka Seme Siyathemba
gasela High Eastern Cape King William’s Town Amathole Buffalo City
St Mary Primary Western Cape george Eden Municipality george
Lot Mashiane Secondary North West Brits Platinum Bojanala Madibeng
Manthe Primary North West Taung Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati greater Taung
Zandspruit Primary gauteng Zandspruit Johannesburg Metropolitan City of Johannesburg
Ntepane Primary Limpopo gariba greater Sekhukhune greater Tubatse
Mc Zitha Primary Mpumalanga Masibekela Ehlanzeni Nkomazi
Nongweleza High KwaZulu-Natal Empangeni uThungulu uMhlathuze
Welabasha High KwaZulu-Natal Empangeni uThungulu Mbonambi
Matshitsholo High KwaZulu-Natal Melmoth Zululand Ulundi
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3.5  INNOVATION
Over the past few years, SENTECH undertook research and benchmarking of peer organisations in different 
territories around the world. This research enabled the company to develop a roadmap for the evolution of the 
needs of the broadcasting and content distribution industry. Some of the countries that successfully commenced 
or completed the process of digital migration, have seen a significant change in the nature of the broadcasting 
industry, with the entry of new players and the launch of new services by incumbent broadcasters. Much of this 
has leveraged the convergence of broadcasting and other technology platforms, such as the internet.

At the beginning of the 2013/14 financial year, SENTECH resolved to establish the Innovation HUB - to specifically  
focus on the development of new platforms and business solutions that would enable the company to take 
advantage of these new opportunities. The Innovation HUB works closely with the other key divisions in the 
company to conceptualise, design and formulate commercialisation strategies for new products and services. 

Over the past year, the Innovation HUB has focused on the new product roadmap that forms part of the DTT 
Business Plan that was approved in the 2012/13 financial year. Key to this new product roadmap was the  
development of platform services for digital TV that incorporated the upgrade and renovation of the SENTECH 
Direct-To-Home Satellite Service. This included both a technology upgrade and the repositioning of the platform 
to focus on the new requirements of existing and new broadcasters. In addition, the Business Plan identified 
the necessity to both secure the platform and enable it for delivering premium services. Via consultation and  
engagement with the market, SENTECH created a platform brand, FREEVISION, to host the services of different  
customers. The FREEVISION platform service will fulfil the universal access obligations for public broadcasting 
services and provide a converged platform for a multi-channel environment.

The FREEVISION brand was well received by the industry at its launch at the end of September 2013. The latter 
half of the financial year was focused on building the industry ecosystem to enable the platform to successfully 
deliver services to the public. In addition, the Innovation HUB has been engaged in various projects with regard 
to the enabling of public services leveraging off the technology platform that SENTECH operates.  
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3.6  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
The Information Technology (IT) Division provides an extensive range of support services to the core  
business activities of SENTECH. At a high level, these services include network and logical access, electronic  
communications, business and productivity applications, end-user support, data management and security.

In order to reduce the operations risks identified within IT, a key focus during the 2013/14 financial year was 
to refresh obsolete elements in the IT technology infrastructure. Refreshed initiatives that were completed  
successfully included the technical upgrade of SAP Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), as well as the refresh 
of critical server operations infrastructure. The Nasrec Data Centre build was also undertaken, which ensured 
that an off-site facility for disaster recovery was established for SENTECH.

In the context of continuous improvement, IT also reviewed and updated SENTECH’s core business processes 
in order to enhance maturity, while supporting strategic change and functional requirements of the business. 
In accordance with good governance practices, IT participated in a general controls review that identified a 
baseline for some areas of improvement and the setting up for adoption of a comprehensive ICT governance 
framework.
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3.7  RISK MANAGEMENT
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) is the responsibility of the Board. The Board delegated the task of  
monitoring the risk management process to the Audit and Risk Committee via the Committee’s Terms of  
Reference. The Executive Committee is responsible for ensuring that all significant risks facing the company are 
managed in accordance with the Risk Management Policy and Framework approved by the Board.

The Risk Policy and Framework for risk management was approved in 2012. The policy was reviewed and 
the revision adopted during 2013/2014 financial year. The policy and framework adopted the philosophy and  
approach provided by the National Treasury guidelines. Implementation of the policy and framework is in  
progress. The documents are available to all members of staff via the Intranet.

The Fraud Prevention Plan for SENTECH adopted the philosophy and recommendation by the Department of 
Public Service and Administration (DPSA). The awareness and education programmes were run throughout the 
organisation during risk workshops and meetings, as well as over Business Television (BTV), in order to cover 
staff members throughout the country.

The Assurance Process and Plan was adopted by the Audit and Risk Committee during the performance cycle. 
During this period, all three levels of defence provided assurance on the significant risks that SENTECH faced.

Risks linked to KPIs were identified and assessed at the commencement of the performance cycle. Risk  
ownership was then allocated and mitigation plans agreed upon. The progress being made with the  
implementation of these plans was monitored and reported on a quarterly basis. Risk reporting has been in 
accordance with SENTECH’s policy and framework for risk management.

Hereunder is a list of significant risks and how they were addressed during the year under review. Assessment 
and closure of action plans in this regard do not imply that the risk has been reduced to within the approved risk 
appetite and tolerance levels, as set out in the Risk Appetite and Tolerance Policy. The commitment to action 
plans was confined to actions that could be undertaken within the financial year under review. This specifically 
applied to SAP IT-related risk. (Whereas commitment pertained to the SAP technical upgrade only; the scope did 
not include SAP functional upgrade, which is necessary for adequacy and effectiveness of controls embedded  
within an SAP system). The same applies to the risk of threats to financial sustainability. These risks are still 
significant to SENTECH. The significant risks dealt with and how they have been addressed, are summarised 
in the table below:

NO RISK AREA RISK MITIGATION

1 Financial 
sustainability 
risks.

Risk mitigation activities in this regard focused on the following five broad areas that contribute to 
Return On Net Assets (RONA). These are:

Growth Revenue
Several risk mitigation activities were committed to. These are:
Sales strategy: A sales strategy was developed and is being implemented in order to grow customer 
base, thus increasing revenue. 
Product: The VIVID DTH-S platform was rebranded and launched as FREEVISION, with new products 
and services added on to the platform, such as VOD services and PayTV. Implementation of the FREE-
VISION platform is under way and existing customers are being migrated onto the platform. A review 
of the VSAT products was initiated with the focus on technical issues. A BTV strategy was developed 
and implementation commenced. Two new transponders were procured to increase capacity in order to 
serve more customers. 
Regulator engagements: The Regulator was engaged in order to expedite and bring forward the dates 
for the issuing of new licenses in order to increase SENTECH’s revenue. This resulted in a blanket ap-
proval by ICASA for all outstanding licences, whereupon the SABC received approval for all outstanding 
Frequency licences. 
International business: Management considered ways to expand international business in order to 
increase revenue on the back of existing infrastructure. Neighbouring countries were also engaged in 
order to expand business on the African continent. 
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NO RISK AREA RISK MITIGATION

Reduction of Cost of Sales and Administration Costs 
Ways to reduce and/or optimise operational costs and improve on efficiencies were investigated and 
actual costs incurred closely monitored. The biggest contributing costs were identified and individuals’ 
Balanced Score Cards approach applied to manage these high-cost and high-impact items. Satellite 
rental costs are one of the biggest costs SENTECH incurs due to Rand depreciation. A hedging policy 
will be considered during the 2014/15 financial year. Implementation of Project Sakhu’muntu and other 
HR initiatives to build human resources capacity (the result of which will be improved performance and 
productivity which, in turn, will reduce operational costs and improve on returns) were embarked upon. 
Processes to ensure that energy efficient equipment is purchased as part of technology upgrades were 
put in place in order to reduce electricity costs. Energy efficiency equipment is now a standard require-
ment for the procurement of equipment.

Net Assets
Optimisation of the existing asset base in order to provide an opportunity for revenue growth and 
ongoing sustainability of SENTECH was considered. Asset count and verification were undertaken, fol-
lowed by a process to update the asset register. An inventory stock-taking and disposal of the already 
decommissioned assets that were still on the asset register was also undertaken. Disposals then took 
place during the last quarter of the financial year.

Cash Control 
The Company instituted a sound management of cash reserves in order to enable the financing of 
CAPEX and investments of surplus cash in interventions that will yield social and financial sustaina-
bility benefits for both the country and company respectively. Furthermore, sound Business Cases are 
being approved as per DOA, prior to using cash for new project initiatives. A process wherein Business 
Cases are developed and reviewed for cashflow was put in place. All CAPEX budgets are now being 
supported by approved Business Cases and the CAPEX budget is not released without approval of the 
Business Cases.

Interest Risk
Interest risk was considered and rated insignificant for SENTECH, as the company only had a DBSA 
loan, which would be paid up at the end of the financial year under review. The loan was paid-off as 
planned.

2 Risks to strategic 
projects (SAP 
technical upgrade 
and DTT rollout).

The project risks, (specifically related to DTT infrastructure and SAP technical upgrade projects), 
namely, the potential not to deliver quality projects within the specified time and at budgeted cost, were 
systematically managed and SAP technical upgrades successfully delivered, while the target for DTT 
rollout was revised. The revised target was met.

3 Network 
performance-
related risks.

The risks associated with achievement on Service Level Agreements (SLAs) performance levels were 
identified and managed on a continual basis. Some of the key risks included issues relating to the 
non-availability of spares, and ongoing communication with regional offices, regarding the purchasing 
of needed spares within the DTT project rollout, was the key risk control measure deployed. Targets 
pertaining to network availability were consistently met. Maintenance (both preventive and corrective) is 
still needed to maintain and improve on the levels of network performance and is therefore planned for 
2014/15.

4 Risks relating 
to customer 
satisfaction.

A service provider was sourced to conduct the survey to determine baseline customer satisfaction. 
Processes are underway to address gaps identified.

5 Risk associated 
with staff 
engagement and 
satisfaction (HR).

The key risks to staff engagement and satisfaction were identified and mitigated. Remuneration and 
a Reward Policy and Strategy were identified as some of the key risks associated with staff engage-
ment and satisfaction. These policies were developed and approved and are now being implemented. 
Leadership was also a key risk, which was dealt with by conducting leadership, as well as 360-degree 
assessments, and engagement surveys were implemented during the financial year under review. A 
leadership development programme is now being considered for rollout in the next financial year.

The real test for effectiveness of risk management processes and their benefit to the organisation is reflected 
by the organisation’s performance with regard to its objectives. Significant strides were made in implementing 
risk management within SENTECH’s business and its operations. The effort to embed risk management within 
the organisation will be continued and intensified during the 2014/15 performance period, in order to improve 
on the risk maturity level.
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3.8  INTERNAL AUdIT 
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) ensured that SENTECH has an effective risk-based and independent 
Internal Audit Function (IAF), governed by an Internal Audit Charter, which was approved by ARC. The IAF  
adheres to the Standards and Code of Ethics set out by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

The IAF reports functionally to the Audit and Risk Committee and provides reports at every meeting of ARC. The 
internal audit function, inter alia, evaluates the company’s governance processes and objectively assesses and 
reports on the effectiveness of risk management and the internal control environment.

The Internal Audit Executive reports at each Audit and Risk Committee meeting and has a direct reporting line 
and access to the Chairperson of ARC. The IAF operates independently of Executive Management, but has an 
administrative reporting line to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Internal Audit Executive is responsible for coordinating internal audit efforts, so as to ensure appropriate 
coverage, while maximising efficiency. IAF conducts a robust risk-based planning process that incorporates 
various criteria to prioritise and classify the cost centres and functions in the company. Business units, classified 
as high risk, were included in the audit universe. Depending on the risk classification, all other material business 
units will be included in the three-year rolling plan.

Outsourced internal audit processes were included in the planning process and included in the audit universe, 
where appropriate. The annual audit plan is reviewed regularly to ensure it remains relevant and responsive to 
changes in the operating environment. ARC approves the annual internal audit plan and three-year rolling plan. 

Internal Audit systematically analysed and evaluated the significant risks and associated controls in the audit 
universe and, in terms of the agreed scope, whether there were any material breakdowns in internal control. 
Significant control weaknesses are reported, in terms of an escalation protocol, to all levels of Management 
(managers, heads and executives), including the Executive Committee. ARC receives reports and actions taken 
by Management at committee meetings.

The IAF also liaises with the external auditors, Risk Management and other assurance providers to enhance 
efficiencies in terms of combined assurance. Internal Audit, in conjunction with Risk Management, facilitated the 
implementation of a combined assurance.

The IAF proactively reviews its practices and resources for adequacy and appropriateness, in order to meet 
the increasingly demanding Corporate Governance and Regulatory Environment, including the requirements of 
King III.

During the 2013/14 financial year, Internal Audit was able to discharge its responsibilities in line with the charter  
and, as outlined in the Internal Audit Plan, compliant with IIA Standards and, furthermore, performed ad 
hoc assignment as and when required. The ARC is satisfied that the internal audit function is appropriately  
independent and that it has fulfilled its responsibility to assist and advise the ARC and the Board.
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3.9  COMPLIANCE REPORT
SENTECH has a full-time Compliance Officer who reports directly to the Executive Internal Audit. The  
Compliance Unit is intended to provide reasonable assurance to SENTECH, which includes the following:

• Ensuring that SENTECH is in compliance with the applicable legislation, regulations, and codes  
applicable to SENTECH;

• promoting compliance and providing assurance of non-compliance with laws, rules or regulations; and

• establishing, monitoring, and enforcing high professional and ethical standards.

During the period under review, the Compliance Unit achieved the following:

• Conducted the monitoring of health and safety requirements, as set out in the Occupational Health 
and Safety Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993). The health and safety monitoring was conducted in  
SENTECH regions, reporting to the SENTECH Operations Business Unit. Significant findings were made,  
and action plans to mitigate the findings are currently being implemented by the respective process  
owners. Follow-up monitoring on health and safety will be conducted during the 2014/15 financial year;

• the SENTECH PAIA Manual was developed and approved by the EXCO and the Audit and Risk  
Committee;

• furthermore, an Information Officer was appointed to manage the requirements, as set out in the  
SENTECH PAIA Manual;

• a high-level awareness document was presented to EXCO and the Audit and Risk Committee respectively,  
in terms of the following legislation;

a) PAJA: Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 (Act No. 3 of 2000)

b) PAIA: Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000)

c) POPI: Protection of Personal Information Act (Act No. 24 of 2013)

• it provided inputs on compliance risks that impacted legislation to SENTECH’s DTH/FREEVISION projects; 

• it provided ongoing compliance advice and furthered awareness across business units within SENTECH; 
and 

• the Compliance Plan for 2014 was approved by the Audit and Risk Committee. The Plan sets out the 
monitoring themes, awareness issues and training for the 2014/15 financial year.

The challenge that Compliance faces is that SENTECH is to move forward to a level of maturity pertaining to 
compliance, which requires more effective, streamlined processes across the various business units within 
SENTECH.

Compliance remains committed to improving the level of maturity of compliance across SENTECH by training, 
awareness-building and monitoring.

Compliance is committed to working with stakeholders - both internally and externally - to bring SENTECH to an 
overall maturity level pertaining to compliance, both nationally and internationally.
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ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES ANd APPROVAL
The Group’s Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Group’s annual 
financial statements and the annual financial statements of SENTECH SOC Limited comprising the statements 
of financial position at 31 March 2014, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cashflows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which  
include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in accordance with International  
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa. In addition, the Group’s Accounting Authority is responsible for 
preparing the Accounting Authority’s Report.

The Accounting Authority is also responsible for such internal control as the Accounting Authority determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error; and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management  
as well as the preparation of the supplementary schedules included in these financial statements.

The Accounting Authority has made an assessment of the Company and Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and there is no reason to believe the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the Group financial statements and Company financial  
statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable reporting framework.

Approval of group annual financial statements and company annual financial statements

The Group annual financial statements and annual financial statements of SENTECH SOC Limited, as identified 
in the first paragraph, were approved by the Accounting Authority on 29 July 2014 and are signed on its behalf 
by:

                                       

----------------------------------                                        ----------------------------------            

Mr	TJA	Mongake																																																				Ms	X	Daku
Authorised Director                                                  Authorised Director
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STATEMENT BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY
I certify that SENTECH SOC Limited has filed all its returns and notices for the year ended 31 March 2014, as 
are required of a public company in terms of Section 88(2) (e) of the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), 
and that such returns and notices are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct and up to date.

----------------------------------

Mr	Pitso	Mokoena
Acting Company Secretary
29 July 2014
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REPORT OF THE AUdIT ANd RISK COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Committee was constituted as a Committee of the Board to fulfil statutory duties in terms of 
Section 51 (1) (a) (ii), Section 76 and Section 77 of the PFMA, read together with regulation 27 of the Treasury 
Regulations and Section 94 (7) of the  Companies Act, 2008, as well as all other duties assigned to it by the 
Board. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Audit and Risk Committee adopted formal Terms of Reference that had been approved by the Accounting 
Authority and executed its duties during the financial year under review in accordance with these Terms of  
Reference.

COMPOSITION

The Shareholder appointed the following directors to constitute the Committee: Mr Paris Mashile (re-appointment)  
and Mr Stephen Molala. In addition, the Shareholder re-appointed Ms Joy Masemola as Chairperson of the 
Committee. During the period under review, the Board appointed Mr Molala and Mr Mjwara as Audit and Risk 
Committee members, with effect from 12 June 2013. Due to the resignation of Mr Mjwara and the appointment 
of new directors, the Board rearranged the committees and, as a result, the committee membership of the  
Audit and Risk Committee now comprises Ms Xoliswa Daku, Ms Ntombizodwa Mbele and Ms Joy Masemola as 
Chairperson.

The Committee held six meetings during the period under review.

Membership	and	attendance	of	meetings

2013 2014

22 APR 29 MAY 18 JUL 23 OCT 24 JAN 21 FEB

Ms J Masemola      

Mr P Mashile      

Ms S Molala n/a n/a    n/a
Ms X Daku n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Ms N Mbele n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Ms L Khumalo   n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mr J Mjwara n/a n/a  n/a n/a n/a

 Present             absent          n/a director resigned or not yet appointed.

The external auditors attend committee meetings and have unrestricted access to all committees of the Board 
that deal with audit and/or risk issues pertaining to the Company. In addition, the executive directors, the  
Executive: Risk and the Executive: Internal Audit attends Committee meetings by permanent invitation.

STATUTORY dUTIES

In execution of its statutory duties during the financial year under review, the Audit Committee:

• nominated Rakoma and Associates Incorporated to be appointed as external auditors;

• reviewed fees to be paid to the auditors as disclosed in Note 22;

• determined Rakoma and Associates Incorporated’s terms of engagement;
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• developed and implemented a policy setting out the categories of non-audit services that the external 
auditors may and may not provide, divided between permitted, permissible and prohibited services;

• pre-approved all non-audit service contacts with Rakoma and Associates Inc.;

• received no complaints relating to the accounting practices and internal audit of the Company, the con-
tent or auditing of its financial statements, the internal financial controls of the Company or any other 
related matters;

• made submissions to the Board on matters concerning the company’s accounting policies, financial  
control, records and reporting; and

• concurred that the adoption of the going concern premise in preparation of the financial statements was 
appropriate.

dELEGATEd dUTIES 

oversight	of	Risk	Management

The committee:

• received assurance that the processes and procedure followed by the Risk Management Committee are 
sufficiently adequate to ensure that financial risk are identified and monitored; 

• satisfied itself that the following areas had been appropriately addressed:

- Financial reporting risks

- Internal financial controls

- Fraud risks as related to financial reporting

- IT risks as related to financial reporting; and

• reviewed tax and technology risks and, in particular, how they are managed.

Internal	Financial	Control

The committee:

• reviewed the effectiveness of the company’s system of internal financial control, including receiving  
assurance from management, internal audit and external audit;

• reviewed significant issues raised by the internal audit and audit processes; and

• reviewed policies and procedures for preventing and detecting fraud.

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, the committee believes that the significant internal financial 
controls are effective.

Regulatory	Compliance

The Audit Committee complied with all applicable legal and regulatory responsibilities.
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External	Audit

Based on processes followed and assurances received, nothing has come to the committee’s attention with 
regard to the external auditors’ independence.

Details of the external auditors are set out in the Accounting Authority Report.

Internal	Audit

The committee:

• reviewed and recommended the Internal Audit Charter for approval;

• evaluated the independence, effectiveness and performance of the internal audit function and compliance 
with its mandate;

• satisfied itself that the internal audit function has the necessary resources, budget, standing and authority 
in the company to enable it to discharge its functions;

• appointed and assessed the performance of the Chief Audit Executive;

• approved the Internal Audit plan; and

• encouraged cooperation between External and Internal Audit.

The Executive Internal Audit reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Audit Committee and 
has unrestricted access to the Audit Committee Chairperson.

Finance	Function

The Company’s new CFO was appointed on 1 September 2013.  In making these assessments, the committee 
obtained feedback from both the external and internal auditors. Based upon the processes and assurances ob-
tained, the committee believes that the accounting practices adopted are effective.

Financial	Statements

Based on process and assurances obtained, the committee recommends the Group and Company Annual  
Financial Statements to the Board for approval.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

-------------------------------------------

Ms	Joy	Masemola	
Chairperson
29 July 2014
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ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S REPORT
1. GENERAL

• Group revenue from continuing operations increased by 8.4% to R975 million (2013: R899 million);

• Income for the Group increased to R1 062 million (2013: R927 million);

• An increase of 5% in group operating profits from continuing operations to R201 million;

• Cash generated from operations decreased to R47 million from R226 million;

• DTT coverage of 82.13% was reached at 31 March 2014;

• The broadband funding amounting to R622 million inclusive of interest after tax; was repaid to the  
National Treasury during the current financial year;

• The sum of R110 million (net of Government grant) was spent on additions to the property, plant and 
equipment in 2014.

The Review provides high-level commentary on the financial position and performance of SENTECH SOC  
Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The Review should be read  
together with the Annual Report.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION ANd PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group Financial Statements and Company Financial Statements were prepared in compliance with  
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and with the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa and the Public Finance Management Act (“PFMA”) of South Africa.

2.1		IFRS

The application of IFRS by SENTECH, a Schedule 3B entity, is contrary to Chapter 28 of the Treasury  
Regulations, which specifies that GRAP should be used.

The National Treasury approved this departure from Treasury Regulation 28.1.6, pending the review of GRAP 
by the Office of the Accountant-General and the Accounting Standards Board (ASB).

This approval is issued in terms of Section 79 of the PFMA and remains in effect until further notice or  
amendment to the Treasury Regulations.

The financial statements for the current period were prepared on a basis consistent with the financial statements 
of the previous year.

2.2		Companies	Act

These financial statements were prepared in compliance with the Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), 
which had been promulgated with an effective date of 1 May 2011.

2.3		PFMA

The Group complied in all material respects with the requirements of the PFMA.
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2.4	legal	and	Regulatory	Environment

licensing

The Electronic Communications Amendment Act, 2005 (Act No. 36 of 2005), was published on 8 January 2008 
and came into effect on 2 February 2008.

Effective	1	April	2009,	ICASA	issued	SENTECH	with	the	following	licences	in	terms	of	the	Electronic	
Communications	Act	(ECA):

Held	directly	by	SENTECH	SoC	limited:

Individual Electronic Communications Network Services (011/ECNS/JAN09)

Individual Electronic Communications Services Licence (011/ECS/JAN09)

Individual Electronic Communications Services Licence (0457/IECS/JAN/09)

Individual Electronic Communications Network Services (0457/IECNS/JAN09)

Held	by	InfoSat	SoC	Proprietary	limited:

Individual Electronic Communications Network Services (0282/IECNS/MAR09)

Individual Electronic Communications Services Licence (0282/IECS/MAR09)

2.5		Adoption	of	IAS19

The Group has adopted IAS19, relating to the accounting for employee benefits. The result of this adoption was 
that actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income and no longer in 
profit or loss.

2.6		Key	Areas	where	the	Accounting	Authority’s	Judgement	was	Applied

Certain accounting policies were identified as involving particularly complex or subjective judgements or  
assessments. The nature of these assumptions is inherently long-term and future experience may result in 
actual amounts differing from these estimates. The following accounting policies were identified as involving 
particularly complex or subjective assessments:

• Determination of provisions;

• Measurement of employee benefits;

• Deferred tax liability on revalued and grants assets;

• Valuation of property, plant and equipment;

• Recovery of DTT dual illumination costs;

• Depreciation rates; and

• Impairment of assets.
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3. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

One of the key focal areas of the Accounting Authority is the optimal and most efficient use of the Group’s  
capital. The primary objective of the Group’s Capital Management Strategy is to ensure that it maintains healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its core business and social mandate, while maximising stakeholder value.

The Group’s aim is to ensure that it funds the maintenance and growth of its core business, using internally 
generated funds, while using government grant funding for government-initiated programmes.

In order to further reduce the Company’s exposure, the Non-core Business Commitments and Action Plan was 
entered into to limit exposure to the post-retirement medical aid liability (refer to Note 13 of the Annual Financial 
Statements). The background to this is that SENTECH has a post-retirement Medical Aid commitment to all 
eligible employees who were either retired or employed by SENTECH prior to 30 June 2005. This benefit was 
historic and was brought forward in the Policies and Procedures from the SABC when SENTECH was estab-
lished. This unfunded liability has grown substantially and will grow even further over the next number of years. 

In order to address this escalating liability, which stood at R201.3 million at the end of the 2013/14 financial year (2012/13 
financial year: R172.6 million) and the impact that it had on the income statement of R28 million in the 2013/14 financial 
year (2012/13 financial year: R30 million), the Accounting Authority approved a cash settlement offer to affected staff to 
settle the liability. This was limited to the 2013/14 financial year value of the liability.  Alexander Forbes was appointed as 
advisors. Offers were made, based on the September 2013 actuarial value of the liability. An amount of R74 million was 
paid out to settle R115 million of the liability. This amounted to a realised saving of R41 million. 

At year-end the actuarial valuation of the liability of R100 million constituted of 59 in-service members and 89 
continuation members. In order to further mitigate this risk, Alexander Forbes was tasked to assist the company 
with developing a solution for the balance of the liability, which would allow the Company to ringfence assets 
and the related liability in order to:

• minimise the balance sheet impact; 

• transfer non-core risks;

• facilitate asset liability matching; 

• facilitate asset management; 

• benefit payment administration; and 

• ensure that the proposed solution will comply with all applicable regulations.  

It is envisaged that this will be finalised in the second quarter of the 2014/15 financial year, at an amount not 
exceeding the actuarial valuation of the liability at the end of March 2014. This obligation is viewed by the  
Accounting Authority as part of the Group debt.

The Group’s Debt, Equity and Cash balances were as follows:

Statement	of	Financial	Position

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Loans and borrowings - (25 101)
Other financial liabilities - (30 411)
Post-retirement liabilities (100 333) (198 625)
Shareholder equity (1 166 200) (953 144)
Cash and cash equivalents 1 077 430 1 560 260
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The Group completed a detailed review of all operating assets, in line with its maintenance and replacement 
asset programme. This exercise determined that capital expenditure of R645 million was required over the next 
three years, which the Group intends funding with current and future internally generated cashflow.

The DTT project to migrate the effect of the switch from analogue to digital transmission is funded entirely from 
government grant funds. The grant funds, including VAT, for capital expenditure and operating costs are as 
follows:

Grants
Capital
R’000

Operating
R’000

Approved 1 489 022 360 840

Requested 1 489 022 467 840
Received 1 419 217 360 840
Total	grants	to	be	received 69	805 107	000

Grant-funded assets are currently recognised net of government funding. In the case of the DTT grant assets, it 
is anticipated that these will be fully funded by grant funding. Accordingly, these assets, in terms of the current 
accounting policy, will be recorded at a zero cost. SARS issued a practice note in December 2010 that allowed 
the claiming of wear and tear on grant-funded assets. After the switch-on of DTT in June 2015, the Group will 
earn revenue on these assets, benefiting from wear and tear deduction with no depreciation charges. This 
will distort the capital management of the Group and it is therefore the intention of the Accounting Authority to  
review the current accounting policy on grant assets for the 31 March 2015 Annual Financial Statements. 

The Group’s normalised debt to equity ratio moved to 9.3% from 26.7% at 31 March 2014.

4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Group revenue from continuing operations increased by 8.4% to R975 million (2013: R899 million). Earnings 
before taxation “EBIT” increased to R224 million (2013: R28 million). Of this movement, R170 million related to 
a once-off interest charge in the 2012/13 financial year.

The subdued revenue growth is mainly due to price increases, limited to CPI, and very little new sales activity 
during the period under review. The normalised operating profit margin reduced to 6% (2013: 16.8%). 

Income for the Group was generated from three sources during the period under review and is indicated in the 
table below:

Income

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Revenue 975 287 899 383
Surplus on part settlement of post-retirement medical aid liability 41 031 -
Finance income 46 202 27 485

1	062	520 926	868



sentech • AnnUAL RePORt fOR the yeAR ended 31 mARch 2014 64

A review of the operating profit after adjusting for once-off items is presented below:

operating	Profit %

2014
R’000

%

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

operating	income	from	continuing	operations 201 385 193 636
Actual operating margin 20.9% 21.5%

Adjustment	for	Exceptional	Items
ICASA Settlement - 35 500 
DTT Illumination Government Grant (89 349) (68 224)
Surplus on part settlement of post-retirement medical aid  
liability (41 031)
Normalised	operating	Income 71	006 160	912

Normalised Operating Margin 6.0% 16.8%

Finance income of R46 million (2013: R27 million) was earned on the Group’s own cash. The increase is due to 
the higher amounts of cash invested over the period under review. The comparative figure was adjusted to take 
into account the correction of the policy in the treatment of interest on government funds held.  

The normalised finance cost of R23 million (2013: R20 million) relates principally to interest on the DBSA  
infrastructure loan and the interest cost on the unfunded post-retirement medical liability. 

Licence fees decreased to R4.8 million (2013: R31 million excluding ICASA settlement) as the Broadband  
Spectrum license was returned to ICASA.

5.  CASHFLOW

The decrease in cashflows from operations from R260.8 million to R39.3 million was as a result of the decrease 
in gross profit and working capital changes. 

The gross profit margin declined by R99 million as a result of a decrease in gross profit from R403 million to R304 
million in 2012/13 and 2013/14 financial years respectively. This was attributable to revenue only increasing  
by 8% and Cost of Sales increasing by 34% due to above inflation increases in several components of COS. 
These included the following:

a. Employee costs – Increase was due to salary increases of 9.5% which was above inflation and gratuity 
payments made during the year. 

b. Satellite costs – Increase was due to the Group committing to two new satellite transponder space leases 
during the year and the satellite costs that are denominated in US Dollar, with negative impact from the 
Rand/Dollar Exchange Rates, the rental fees were thus adversely affected during the year. 

c. Electricity – During the year electricity tariff increased by 8% and there was an increase in transmitters 
which increased the expense. 

d. Special project (Mandela Funeral) – These costs were incurred during the year however no recoveries 
were made.
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Working capital changes in accounts payables and inventories also resulted in the decrease in cashflows from 
operations with the following impact:

a. The accounts payables balance decreased significantly as a result of a drive to pay off creditors within 
30 days and also less purchases for the DTT project which was 82.13% complete by 31 March 2014.This 
is in contrast to the prior year when there was a significant increase in purchases for the DTT project in 
order for the Group to move from 60% to 81% completion by the end of FY 2013. 

b. Increase in purchases of inventories due to increase in spares for the DTT assets also decreased the 
cashflows from operations. 

6.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital expenditure will be funded from internal cash resources, while all other capital expenditure 
will be funded by grant funds received and to be received. The Group estimated the following capital commitments  
for the MTEF period (refer to Note 33): 

Capital	Commitments R’000

Capital	Expenditure
SENTECH internal funding 644 944
Government grant funds (DTT and disaster recovery site) 265 750

910	694

7.  GOING CONCERN

The Accounting Authority reviewed the Corporate Plan and prepared a cashflow forecast for the 18 months to 
31 September 2014. The Corporate Plan concludes that the Group has, via a number of austerity measures, 
improved the profitability and cash-generating ability to a satisfactory level.

On the basis of this review, and in light of the current financial position and approved grant funding, the  
Accounting Authority is satisfied that the Group has access to adequate cash resources to continue its  
operational existence for the foreseeable future, that it is a going concern and has continued to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

8.  RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR-PERIOd NUMBERS

The following numbers were restated in the financial statements (refer to Note 40 of the Annual Financial  
Statements):

• Taxation;

• Deferred taxation;

• Inventory;

• Property, plant and equipment;

• Retained earnings.

The taxation and deferred taxation related to the previous year’s depreciation of grant funded assets was not 
deducted in the tax calculation. Based on the advice of the tax advisors, it was concluded that the amounts were 
in fact deductible and this had the impact of reducing the tax liability by R17 million. A change in treatment of 
items in the tax calculation also resulted in an increase in the deferred tax liability by R5 million.
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In the past, spares have been re-classified from Inventory to Property Plant and equipment and were depreciated  
over what was considered the appropriate useful life of the assets. After reviewing IAS 16 it was concluded that 
this was incorrect and the Spares were actually inventory. This has resulted in an increase in inventory of R49 
million in 2012 and R2 million in 2013. 

Opening retained income in 2012 increased by R47 million and there was an impact of a R1 million decrease in 
expenses and a decrease in the income tax expense of R12 million in 2013 and R 3 million in expenses.

9.  POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Accounting Authority is not aware of any other matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial  
year that would impact on the reported results, other than those matters already disclosed in these financial 
statements.

10. AUTHORISEd ANd ISSUEd SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: 100 000 ordinary shares. 
Issued: 2 000 ordinary shares are held by the State, represented by the Department of Communications. 

11. BORROWING LIMITATIONS

In terms of the Group’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Group may only borrow money provided such borrowing  
is in accordance with S66 of the PFMA and any other legislation.

12. dIVIdENdS

No dividends were declared or paid out during the period under review.

13. dIRECTORS

The Accounting Authority is represented by the Board of Directors, in terms of S49(2) a of the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa. The Group’s Directors during the period under review and to the date of this 
report are as follows:

NAME POSITION START dATE dATE TERM ENdEd

T Mongake*
Chairperson 1 August 2012 -

Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 -

P Mashile**
Acting Chairperson 1 March 2012 31 July 2012

Non-executive Director 1 March 2011 28 February 2014
L Khumalo** Non-executive Director 1 June 2010 31 May 2013
Mr S Mjwara# Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 31 July 2013
Mr S Molala* Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 -
Dr S Mohapi* Chief Executive Officer 1 November 2010 -
Ms R Rasikhinya* Chief Financial Officer 1 September 2013 -
Mr KMatabane* Chief Operating Officer 1 July 2012 -
Ms N P Mbele* Non-executive Director 1 November 2013 -
Ms R J Huntley* Non-executive Director 1 November 2013 -
Ms X Daku* Non-executive Director 1 November 2013 -

*  Current Board Member          # Resigned           ** Term ended
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14. AUdIT COMMITTEE

The Group’s Audit Committee comprised the following members who were appointed to the Audit Committee by 
the Minister at the AGM:

NAME POSITION START dATE dATE TERM ENdEd

J Masemola ^~ Chairperson 25 September 2012 -
P Mashile*~ Non-executive Director 1 March 2012 28 February 2014**
L Khumalo**~ Non-executive Director 1 June 2010 31 May 2013**
S Mjwara* Non-executive Director 12 June 2013 31 July 2013#

N Mbele* Non-executive Director 1 March 2014 -
X Daku* Non-executive Director 1 March 2014 -
S Molala* Non-executive Director 12 June 2013 -

^ Independent Chairperson appointed by the Minister of Communications    * Current Board Member     ** Term ended   ~ Appointed at AGM   # Resigned

15.  COMPANY SECRETARY

The Secretary of the Company was Adv. M Ramashoba, appointed 1 July 2013. She resigned on 31 December 
2013. Mr Pitso Mokoena is the Acting Company Secretary. 

The Company Secretary’s business and postal addresses are as follows: 

Business address SENTECH Park
Octavia Street
Radiokop

Postal address Private Bag X06
Honeydew
2040

16.  ExTERNAL AUdITORS

Rakoma and Associates Inc. are the currently appointed auditors.
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INdEPENdENT AUdITOR’S REPORT
REPoRT	oF	THE	AUDIToR	To	PARlIAMENT	AND	SHAREHolDER	oN	SENTECH	SoC	lIMITED

REPoRT	oN	THE	CoNSolIDATED	AND	SEPARATE	FINANCIAl	STATEMENTS

INTROdUCTION

1. We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Sentech SOC Limited and its  
subsidiaries set out on pages 71 to 120 which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial 
position as at 31 March 2014, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in equity, and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIdATEd ANd SEPARATE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. The Board of Directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 
2008) and the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), and for such internal 
control as the Accounting Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUdITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 
of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those  
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the  
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of  
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the  
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal  
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

OPINION

6. In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Sentech SOC Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014, their financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa.
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AddITIONAL MATTER

7. We further draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

other	reports	required	by	the	Companies	Act

8. As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, we have read the Accounting  
Authority’s Report, the Audit and Risk Committee’s Report and the Statement by Company Secretary for 
the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited  
financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these 
reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between the reports and the audited financial statements.  
We have not audited the reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on them.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL ANd REGULATORY REqUIREMENTS

9. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, we report the following findings on 
the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the 
annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal control. The objective of our tests 
was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance on these matters. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined	objectives

10. We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the 
year ended 31 March 2014 as set out on pages 11 to 12 in the annual report.

11. We evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

12. We evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented 
in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance 
was consistent with the planned objectives. We further performed tests to determine whether indicators and 
targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National  
Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

13. We assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

14. There were no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
selected objectives.

Additional	matters

15. Although we raised no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 
for the selected objectives, we draw attention to the following matters:

	

Achievement	of	planned	targets

16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 11 to 12 for information on the achievement of planned targets 
for the year.
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Compliance	with	legislation

17. We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity complied with applicable legislation regarding  
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. There were no material non-compliances 
identified.

	
Internal	control

18. We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and 
compliance with legislation but not for purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal 
control. We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

OTHER REPORTS

Investigations

19. There were investigations that were being conducted on some employees regarding allegations of fraud and 
misconduct. These investigations were still ongoing at the time of finalising this audit and are expected to be 
completed in the next financial year.

	
Audit-related	services	and	special	audits

20. We performed agreed upon procedures in terms of TGM 22 of 2013 PFMA 2013-14: Interim audit of draft  
2014-15 Corporate Plan. No misstatements were noted on the measurability of the targets. The targets were 
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound.

21. We also performed agreed upon procedures to review the conversion adjustments from International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) to Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) on the Treasury pack to 
ensure conversion adjustments are captured correctly for consolidation purposes by National Treasury. No  
material misstatements were identified.

Rakoma and Associates Inc
Registered Auditors

Per: Samkelo Mxunyelwa
Chartered Accountant SA
Registered Auditor
Director
Johannesburg

29 July 2014
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

GROUP COMPANY

NOTE

2014
R’000

2013
R’000

RESTATEd

2012
R’000

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000

RESTATEd

2012
R’000

RESTATEd

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 602 409 545 629 505 366 602 409 545 629 505 366
Investments in subsidiaries * 7 - - - - -
Deferred tax 13 - - 322 - - 322
Retirement benefit asset 12 - - 1 300 - - 1 300
Total non-current assets 602 409 545 629 506 988 602 409 545 629 506 988

Current Assets
Inventories 8 71 666 64 294 56 331 71 666 64 294 56 331
Loans to group companies 15 - - - 7 - -
Current tax receivable 29 50 401 3 787 - 50 401 3 787 -
Trade and other receivables 9 39 832 60 495 41 235 39 832 60 518 41 217
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1 077 430 1 560 260 1 605 937 1 077 423 1 560 131 1 605 806
Total current assets 1 239 329 1 688 836 1 703 503 1 239 329 1 688 730 1 703 354
Total Assets 1 841 738 2 234 465 2 210 491 1 841 738 2 234 359 2 210 342

Equity and Liabilities
Share capital and premium 11 75 892 75 892 75 892 75 892 75 892 75 892
Reserves 510 762 510 762 482 554 510 762 510 762 482 554
Retained income 579 546 366 540 398 027 579 546 366 495 397 936
Total equity 1 166 200 953 194 956 473 1 166 200 953 149 956 382

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefits 12 100 333 198 625 172 622 100 333 198 625 172 622
Deferred tax 13 38 207 7 992 - 38 207 7 992 -
Other financial liabilities 14 - 15 816 - - 15 816 -
Loans and borrowings 16 - - 23 935 - - 23 935
Total non-current liabilities 138 540 222 433 196 557 138 540 222 433 196 557

Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 14 15 816 14 595 - 15 816 14 595 -
Loans and borrowings 16 - 25 101 21 494 - 25 101 21 494
Current tax payable 29 - - 2 653 - - 2 653
Trade and other payables 17 142 482 239 374 105 014 142 482 239 313 104 956
Deferred income - government grants 18 366 020 160 074 889 294 366 020 160 074 889 294
Provisions 19 12 680 12 878 39 006 12 680 12 878 39 006
government grant payable 20 - 606 816 - - 606 816 -
Total current liabilities 536 998 1 058 838 1 057 461 536 998 1 058 777 1 057 403
Total Liabilities 675 538 1 281 271 1 254 018 675 538 1 281 210 1 253 960
Total Equity and Liabilities 1 841 738 2 234 465 2 210 491 1 841 738 2 234 359 2 210 342

* Amounts are below R1 000.

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS ANd OTHER  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GROUP COMPANY

NOTE

2014
R’000

2013
R’000

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000

RESTATEd

Revenue 21 975 287 899 383 975 287 899 373
Cost of sales 22 (670 566) (496 590) (670 566) (496 590)
Gross profit 304 721 402 793 304 721 402 783
Other income 21 41 410 - 41 410 -
Operating expenses 22 (79 316) (97 275) (79 272) (97 275)
Selling expenses 22 (14 718) (12 829) (14 718) (12 829)
Administrative expenses 22 (50 712) (99 053) (50 711) (99 011)
Operating profit 201 385 193 636 201 430 193 668
Finance income 24 46 202 27 485 46 202 27 484
Finance costs 25 (23 103) (193 030) (23 103) (193 015)
Profit before taxation 224 484 28 091 224 529 28 137
Tax expense 26 (11 511) (50 165) (11 511) (50 165)
Profit (loss) for the year 212 973 (22 074) 213 018 (22 028)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss:
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans 12 46 (13 074) 46 (13 074)
Revaluation of property 6 - 39 178 - 39 178
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 26 (13) (7 309) (13) (7 309)
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 33 18 795 33 18 795
Other comprehensive income for the year net of 
taxation 33 18 795 33 18 795
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 213 006 (3 279) 213 051 (3 233)

FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EqUITY

GROUP

SHARE  
CAPITAL

R’000

SHARE  
PREMIUM

R’000

TOTAL  
SHARE  

CAPITAL
R’000

REVALUATION 

RESERVE1

R’000

OTHER  
NdR2

R’000

TOTAL  
RESERVES

R’000

RETAINEd  
INCOME

R’000

TOTAL  
EqUITY
R’000

Opening balance as previously 
reported 2 75 890 75 892 393 940 88 614 482 554 350 629 909 075

Adjustments
Prior period error - - - - - - 47 398 47 398
Balance at 31 March 2012 2 75 890 75 892 393 940 88 614 482 554 398 027 956 473

Loss for the year as restated - - - - - - (22 074) (22 074)
Other comprehensive income as 
restated - - - 28 208 - 28 208 (9 413) 18 795
Total comprehensive Loss 
for the year - - - 28 208 - 28 208 (31 487) (3 279)
Balance at 31 March 2013 2 75 890 75 892 422 148 88 614 510 762 366 540 953 194

Profit for the year - - - - - - 212 973 212 973
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - 33 33
Total comprehensive income  
for the year - - - - - - 213 006 213 006
Balance at 31 March 2014 2 75 890 75 892 422 148 88 614 510 762 579 546 1 166 200
Note 11 11 11

(1) REVALUATION RESERVE

Land and buildings are revalued on a three year cycle. The last valuation was performed on 31 March 2013. See 
Note 6.The revaluation reserve movement for the year on the land and buildings is the gross revaluation amount 
of R0 (2013: R39 178 000) less the corresponding deferred tax amount of R0 (2013: R10 970 000).

(2) OTHER RESERVES

The SABC, in terms of an agreement arrangement by the shareholder, waived the interest-free portion of its 
long-term loan. The gain is reflected as a non-distributable reserve to increase the equity contribution from the 
shareholder.

 

FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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COMPANY

SHARE  
CAPITAL

R’000

SHARE  
PREMIUM

R’000

TOTAL  
SHARE  

CAPITAL
R’000

REVAL-
UATION 

RESERVE
R’000

OTHER  
NdR

R’000

TOTAL  
RESERVES

R’000

RETAINEd  
INCOME

R’000

TOTAL  
EqUITY
R’000

Opening balance as previously 
reported 2 75 890 75 892 393 940 88 614 482 554 350 538 908 984
Adjustments

Prior period error - - - - - - 47 398 47 398
Balance at 31 March 2012 2 75 890 75 892 393 940 88 614 482 554 397 936 956 382

Loss for the year as restated - - - - - - (22 028) (22 028)
Other comprehensive income as 
restated - - - 28 208 - 28 208 (9 413) 18 795
Total comprehensive Loss 
for the year - - - 28 208 - 28 208 (31 441) (3 233)
Balance at 31 March 2013 2 75 890 75 892 422 148 88 614 510 762 366 495 953 149

Profit for the year - - - - - - 213 018 213 018
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - 33 33
Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - - 213 051 213 051
Balance at 31 March 2014 2 75 890 75 892 422 148 88 614 510 762 579 546 1 166 200
Note 11 11 11

Refer to the group statement of changes in equity for notes on the Revaluation Reserve and Other Reserve.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EqUITY
FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOW
FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

GROUP COMPANY

NOTE

2014
R’000

2013
R’000

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000

RESTATEd

Cashflows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 27 39 378 260 820 39 500 260 808
Finance income received 38 720 18 758 38 720 18 757
Dividends received 7 482 8 727 7 482 8 727
Interest paid 28 (4 582) (5 773) (4 582) (5 758)
Tax paid 29 (33 389) (56 870) (33 389) (56 870)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 47 609 225 662 47 731 225 664

Cashflows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment -  
grant funded and own assets 6 (290 493) (457 073) (290 493) (457 073)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 61 - 61
Net cash outflow from investing activities (290 493) (457 012) (290 493) (457 012)

Cashflows from financing activities
Repayment of financial liabilities (ICASA and DBSA) 20 (38 530) - (38 530) -
Repayment of loans and borrowings (622 441) (20 328) (622 441) (20 328)
Settlement of post retirement pension benefit plan (74 443) - (74 443) -
government grants received 18 469 565 152 486 469 565 152 486
government grant utilisation 18 (5 140) (4 895) (5 140) (4 895)
Interest earned on government grant payable 20 15 625 31 696 15 625 31 696
Interest on government grants 18 15 418 26 714 15 625 31 696
Net cash inflow from financing activities (239 946) 185 673 (239 946) 185 673

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equiv-
alents (482 830) (45 677) (482 708) (45 675)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1 560 260 1 605 937 1 560 131 1 605 806
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10 1 077 430 1 560 260 1 077 423 1 560 131
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NOTES ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

1.  REPORTING ENTITY

SENTECH SOC Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in South Africa.The Company’s  
registered office is Sender Technology Park, Octave Road, Honeydew. The consolidated financial statements of 
the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2014 comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries (together  
referred to as the “Group” and individually as the “Group entities”). The Group primarily is involved in signal 
distribution and has transmission stations across the country and provides broadcasting services.

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1		Statement	of	Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and its interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the Companies 
Act of South Africa, No. 71 of 2008, as amended, and the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999, as 
amended by Act 29 of 1999, of South Africa.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Accounting Authority on 29 July 2014.

2.2		Basis	of	Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for the following material 
items in the Statement of Financial Position:

• the defined benefit asset/liability is recognised as the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognised past 
service costs and unrecognised actuarial losses, less unrecognised actuarial gains and the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation; and

• land and buildings are measured at the fair value, being the market value at the date of revaluation.

2.3			Functional	Currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rands, which is the Group’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in Rands has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

2.4		Use	of	Estimates	and	Judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,  
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of  
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting  
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements 
as included in Note 5 and the following Notes:

• Notes 3.4 and 6 – valuation of property, plant and equipment;
• Notes 3.8 and 12 – measurement of employee benefits;
• Notes 3.14 and 13 – utilisation of tax losses; and
• Notes 3.9,19 and 34 – provisions and contingencies.



77

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements and have been applied consistently by the Group.

3.1		Basis	of	Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

loss	of	Control

On the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss 
of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such 
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity 
accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

Transactions	eliminated	on	consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group  
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated  
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.2		Translation	of	Foreign	Currencies

Foreign	currency	transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

• foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
• non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the  

exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous audited 
annual financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Cashflows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign  
currency amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the date of the cashflow.

3.3			Financial	Instruments

Classification

The Company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset,  
a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
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Recognition

Financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  are  recognised  on  the  Group’s  statement  of  financial  position  
when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Presentation

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial 
position when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends either to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cashflows from the asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cashflows on the financial asset in a transaction in which  
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in  
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or  
liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

Non-derivative	financial	instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other  
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value 
through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative 
financial instruments are measured as described below.

loans	to/(from)	group	companies	and	related	parties

These include loans to fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries, joint ventures and related parties and are recognised 
initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.

Subsequently these loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any  
impairment loss on loans receivable recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.

On loans receivable an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that it 
is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the loan’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cashflows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the loan’s recoverable amount can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that 
the carrying amount of the loan at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost 
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Loans to group companies are classified as loans and receivables. Loans from group companies are classified 
as other financial liabilities.

Trade	and	other	payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate method.
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Cash	and	cash	equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. For the purpose of the 
statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, 
and investments in money market instruments, net of bank overdrafts, all of which are available for use by the 
Group unless otherwise stated. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 
statement of cashflows.

Interest-bearing	borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are initially measured at fair value less attributable transaction costs, and are  
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Any difference between the  
initially recognised amount and the redemption amount of interest-bearing borrowings is recognised in profit or 
loss over the term of the interest-bearing borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade	and	other	receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are 
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default 
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cashflows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial  
recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the 
loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is 
written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Share	capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares 
and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

3.4			Property,	Plant	and	Equipment

Recognition	and	measurement

Land and buildings comprise mainly transmitter stations and offices. Buildings are revalued to fair value on a 
three year cycle by external independent valuators. Land and buildings are carried at revalued amounts less 
subsequent accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at 
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount and the net amount is restated to the 
revalued amount.

Increases in the carrying value arising on the revaluation of land and buildings (revaluation surpluses) are  
credited in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity net of taxation. Any 
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity to the 
extent that an amount had previously been included in the revaluation reserve relating to the specific land and 
buildings, with any remaining loss recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and  
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of  
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, directly attributable to borrowing costs and the 
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. For assets funded 
through government grants, the grant income is netted against these costs. Purchased software that is integral 
to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal to the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other income” 
in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred 
to retained earnings.

Subsequent	costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised and the replacement 
part is capitalised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in 
profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount  
substituted for cost, less residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of 
an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption 
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end 
of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

ITEM AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE
land	and	buildings
Land Indefinite
Buildings 40 to 100 years
Improvements to leasehold premises 20 years

Motor	vehicles
Motor vehicles 5 years

Technical	equipment
Technical equipment 10 to 20 years
Computer, technical and office equipment 2 to 5 years
Monitoring equipment 5 to 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 
appropriate.
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3.5		leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease 
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

operating	leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term. The  
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an 
operating lease asset or liability. This balance is not discounted.

3.6		Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the 
weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing 
them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Where necessary, a provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.

3.7	Impairment	of	Assets

Impairment	of	non-financial	assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cashflows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is  
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss of assets carried 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 
prior periods for assets may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable a 
mounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is  
recognised immediately in profit or loss to the extent that it cannot be recouped from the revaluation reserve 
for revalued assets.
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Impairment	of	financial	assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 
it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more 
events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cashflows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cashflows discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. 
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment  
loss was recognised.

3.8		Employee	Benefits

Short-term	employee	benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss during the period in which services are rendered. Employee 
entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised in profit or loss when they accrue to employees in 
respect of past services rendered up to the reporting date. This obligation is measured on an undiscounted basis.

An accrual is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Compa-
ny has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined	contribution	plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for 
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or 
loss in the periods during which the services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised 
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Defined	benefit	plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net 
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; 
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value 
of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds 
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the 
same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the 
calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic 
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the 
plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given any minimum funding 
requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic benefit is available to the Group if it is realisable 
during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. The Group recognises past service cost in profit 
or loss at the earlier of the date when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when the entity recognises 
related restructuring costs or termination benefits.
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The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in other comprehensive 
income.

The Group recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the  
curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment comprises any resulting change in the fair 
value of plan assets, changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation and any related actuarial gains 
and losses and past service cost that had not previously been recognised.

3.9		Provisions	and	Contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation  
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cashflows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding  
of discount is recognised as finance cost.

onerous	contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from 
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is 
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected 
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment 
loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent	liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Group, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount 
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not 
recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial position.

If the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision nor a contingent  
liability and no disclosure is made.

3.10		Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services 
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as 
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating  
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration  
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Sale	of	goods

The Group sells a range of broadcasting and telecommunication products. Sales of goods are recognised when the Group 
has delivered products to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and 
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until 
the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the  
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance  
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Customers have a right to return faulty products. Sales are recorded based on the price specified in the sales 
contracts, net of the estimated volume discounts and returns at the time of sale. Experience is used to estimate 
and provide for the discounts and returns.

Rendering	of	services

The Group renders broadcasting and transmission services. These services are provided on a time basis or as 
a fixed price contract for a specific period.

Revenue from time contracts is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours are delivered and direct 
expenses incurred. If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues, costs or extent 
of progress toward completion, estimates are revised. These revisions may result in increases or decreases in 
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give 
rise to the revision become known by management.

Rental	income

Rental income from the rental of premises is recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the term of 
the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term 
of the lease. Rental income from subleased property is recognised as revenue.

3.11		Government	Grants

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised initially as deferred income which 
is classified under current liabilities. Grants relating to completed and incomplete asset projects are deducted 
from the cost of the relevant asset (net presentation method). The depreciation expense recognised in profit 
or loss over the useful life of the asset is calculated from the net cost of the asset which is after deduction of 
the  corresponding deferred government grant. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are 
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised. 
Government grants are only recognised when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the 
Group  will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Deferred income is classified as a current  
liability as uncertainty exists as to the timing of the release of the government grants.

3.12		lease	payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the term 
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the 
term of the lease.
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3.13		Finance	Income	and	Finance	Costs

Finance income comprises dividend income, interest income on the Group’s own cash and interest income on 
government grants invested, except where specified in the government grant terms and conditions relating to 
the funds invested that are recognised as deferred income. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 
or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the 
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, interest costs on defined benefit plans, unwinding of 
the discount on provisions and impairment losses recognised on financial assets that are recognised in profit 
or loss.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributed to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in operating costs.

3.14		Taxation

Income	tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or 
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not  
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and goodwill 
on initial recognition.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they 
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, 
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax 
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities 
will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised.  
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer  
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the 
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities.

3.15		Related	Parties

Related parties include the Department of Communications (100% shareholder) and its fellow subsidiaries. Directors, their 
close family members and any employee who is able to exert a significant influence on the operating policies of the Group are 
also considered to be related parties. Key management personnel are also regarded as related parties. Key management  
personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.
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4.  NEW STANdARdS ANd INTERPRETATIONS

4.1		Standards	and	interpretations	adopted	in	the	current	year

In the current year, the group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Amendment	to	IAS	1	Presentation	of	Financial	Statements

The group has presented those items of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss 
in the future separately from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The related tax effects for 
the two sub-categories have been be shown separately. This is a change in presentation and has  no impact 
on the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements. The amendment has been applied  
retrospectively and the comparative information has been restated.

IAS	27	(2011)	Separate	Financial	Statements

IAS 27 (2011) superseded IAS 27 (2008). IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and disclosure 
requirements for separate financial statements, with some minor clarifications. The adoption of IAS 27 (2011) 
did not have a significant impact on the company’s separate financial statements.

IFRS	13	Fair	Value	Measurement

IFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how fair value is measured, and replaces the fair value  
measurement guidance that is currently dispersed throughout IFRS. Subject to limited exceptions, IFRS 13 is 
applied when fair value measurements or disclosures are required or permitted by other IFRSs.

IAS	19	Employee	Benefits	(2011)

IAS 19 (2011) changed the definition of short-term and long-term employee benefits to clarify the distinction  
between the two. For defined benefit plans the Group changed its accounting policy for the recognition of  
actuarial gains and losses. These have been recognised immediately in other comprehensive income and 
no longer in profit or loss. The Group has assessed the impact of the change in measurement principles of  
expected return on plan assets.

4.2		Standards	and	interpretations	not	yet	effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of Sentech SOC Limited and subsidiaries for the year 
ended 31 March 2014, the following Standards and Interpretations were issued but not yet effective:

Effective	for	the	financial	year	commencing	1	April	2014

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
• IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
• IAS 19 Employee Benefits
• IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure
• IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
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Effective	for	the	financial	year	commencing	1	April	2015

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Effective	for	the	financial	year	commencing	1	April	2016

• IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

All Standards and Interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those Standards and  
Interpretations that are not applicable to the entity).

The Accounting Authority are of the opinion that the impact of the application of these Standards and  
Interpretations will be as follows:

Amendments	 to	 IFRS	7	Financial	 Instruments:	Disclosures:	offsetting	Financial	Assets	and	Financial	
liabilities

The  amendments  contain  new  disclosure  requirements  for financial assets and financial liabilities that are 
offset in the statement of financial position; or are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar 
agreements. The Group applies offsetting in the financial statements and will be required to provide additional 
disclosures in this regard. The Group has settled its master netting arrangement related to loans to and from 
subsidiaries and therefore the amendment will not have any significant impact on the financial statements.

IFRS	13	Fair	Value	Measurement:	Short-term	receivables	and	payables

This amendment clarifies that issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and IAS 39 did not remove the ability to 
measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without dis-
counting if the effect of not discounting is immaterial.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant; and Equipment:Revaluation method - proportionate restatement of  
accumulated depreciation.

IAS 16 clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued the gross carrying amount is 
adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount. The Group revalues land and 
buildings on a three year cycle. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

IAS	19	Employee	Benefits:	Defined	Benefit	Plans:	Employee	Contributions

The narrow scope amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The 
objective of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of years 
of employee service, for example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. This amendment is not 
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group is in the process of 
settlement of the both defined benefit plans.

IAS	24	Related	Party	Disclosure:	Key	management	personnel

Clarifies that an entity providing key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of 
the reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity. The Group will assess if such arrangements exist 
and disclose accordingly.



sentech • AnnUAL RePORt fOR the yeAR ended 31 mARch 2014 88

Amendments	to	IAS	32	Financial	Instruments:	Presentation:	offsetting	Financial	Assets	and	Financial	liabilities

The amendments clarify when an entity can offset financial assets and financial liabilities. This amendment will 
result in the Group no longer offsetting two of its master netting arrangements. This amendment is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with early adoption permitted.

This amendment is not expected to have an impact on the financial statements as the Group’s master netting 
arrangements have been settled.

IFRS	9	Financial	Instruments

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. Under 
IFRS 9 (2009), financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model in which they are held 
and the characteristics of their contractual cashflows. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions relating to financial  
liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project to make limited amendments to the classification and  
measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and add new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets 
and hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 (2009 and 2010) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 with early  
adoption permitted. The Group and Company will adopt this standard for the financial year commencing 1 January  
2015. The adoption of IFRS 9(2010) is expected to have an impact on the Group and Company’s financial  
assets, but not any impact on the Group and Company’s financial liabilities.

5.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUdGEMENTS ANd KEY ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates, judgements and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

The Group makes estimates, judgements and assumptions concerning the future. Those that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below.

Property,	plant	and	equipment

The valuation methods used for the revaluations of land and building are the income capitalisation amount 
and the depreciated replacement cost method, which are deemed most appropriate. The income capitalisation 
method takes into account any market based evidence regarding the value of the land or buildings as at the 
date of the valuation. Should market based evidence not exist, the depreciated replacement cost method will be 
used. The depreciated replacement cost method uses the replacement cost of the asset at the date of valuation 
and a depreciation factor is applied to arrive at the depreciated revalued cost. The comparable sales method 
of valuation is used, where relevant, to determine the market value of the property. This method entails the  
identification, analysis and application of recent comparable sales involving physical and legally similar properties  
in the general proximity of the subject property, to enable to valuator to arrive at a norm which will serve as a 
guide in estimating the market value of the property.

All valuations are performed by an experienced, qualified and objective valuator.

The residual values of property, plant and equipment are considered to be insignificant as the estimation of 
useful lives is equal to their economic lives.
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Impairment	of	assets

The Group tests whether assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated 
in Note 3.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use 
calculations. Estimates are based on management’s interpretation of market forecasts and assessments.

Inventories

Inventory is written down to net realisable value when it is considered that the amount realisable from such inventory’s 
sale is considered to be less than its cost value. In determining whether a particular item of inventory could be considered 
to be overvalued, several factors are taken into consideration. These include, but are not limited to the following:

• Saleability;
• Excessive quantity;
• Age;
• Sub-standard quality and damage; and
• Historical and forecast sales demand.

loans	and	receivables

Management identifies impairment of loans and receivables on an ongoing basis. Impairment adjustments 
are raised against loans and receivables when their collectability is considered to be doubtful. Management  
believes that the impairment write-off is conservative and there are no significant trade receivables that are 
doubtful and have not been impaired. In determining whether a particular debtor could be doubtful, several 
factors are taken into consideration. These include, but are not limited to the following:

• Age;
• Credit terms;
• Customer current and anticipated future financial status; and
• Disputes with the customer.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. The 
group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. 
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such 
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is 
made.

The Group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it 
is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the  
recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the group to make estimates related to expectations of 
future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cashflows from operations and 
the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cashflows and taxable income 
differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the 
reporting date could be impacted.

Defined	benefit	funds

Experienced and qualified actuaries determine the value of defined benefit fund assets and liabilities at the end 
of each reporting period.
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6.  PROPERTY, PLANT ANd     
     EqUIPMENT (CONTINUEd)

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Valuations were made on the basis of comparative land sales in each area and buildings based on the net  
replacement valuation or the capitalisation of income methods depending on the type and location of the property.  
The revaluation surplus/deficit, net of applicable deferred tax, was credited or debited to the revaluation  
reserve in shareholders’ equity.

No revaluations were performed during the current year.

If land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

Cost 288 555 236 972 236 125 288 555 236 972 236 125
Accumulated depreciation and  
impairment losses (112 956) (74 639) (75 344) (112 956) (74 639) (75 344)
Carrying amount 175 599 162 333 160 781 175 599 162 333 160 781

7.  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIdIARIES *

Name of company % HOLdING 

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

2014
R ‘000

CARRYING 
AMOUNT 

2013
R ‘000  

RESTATEd

Infohold SOC Limited 100% * *
Vivid Multimedia SOC Limited 100% * *
SENTECH International SOC Limited 100% * *

* *
* Amounts are below R1 000.
The susidiaries above are unlisted and registered in South Africa.

SENTECH SOC Limited holds 100% of Infohold SOC Limited , Vivid Multimedia SOC Limited and SENTECH 
International SOC Limited. InfoHold SOC Limited holds 100% of the shares of its subsidiary InfoSat SOC 
Limited.

InfoSat SOC Limited’s business was discontinued in 2010.

There are no significant restrictions in the ability of SENTECH SOC Limited to access assets and settle  
liabilities in the Group. Intercompany loans have been disclosed in Note 15.

The Accounting Authority approved the winding up of Infohold SOC Limited and InfoSat SOC Limited .This 
process was still in progress at the reporting date.

GROUP COMPANY

8.  INVENTORIES

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Consumables 3 323 9 827 16 861 3 323 9 827 16 861
Inventories 69 343 55 467 48 840 69 343 55 467 48 840

72 666 65 294 65 701 72 666 65 294 65 701
Inventories (write-downs) (1 000) (1 000) (9 370) (1 000) (1 000) (9 370)

71 666 64 294 56 331 71 666 64 294 56 331

Inventory balances for the 2012 and 2013 financial year were restated as a result off spares that were  
incorrectly classified as property, plant and equipment. Refer to Note 40.

The inventory held is not encumbered.
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9.  TRAdE ANd OTHER  
     RECEIVABLES

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Trade receivables 30 528 44 665 46 398 30 528 44 717 46 053
Less: Impairment (4 916) (9 582) (16 662) (4 916) (9 612) (16 335)
Net trade receivables 25 612 35 083 29 736 25 612 35 105 29 718
Other receivables 5 849 6 204 6 451 5 849 6 205 6 451
Deposits 1 760 1 723 882 1 760 1 723 882
Loan and receivables 33 221 43 010 37 069 33 221 43 033 37 051
Prepayments 6 611 13 630 4 166 6 611 13 630 4 166
VAT - 3 855 - - 3 855 -
Total trade and other receivables 39 832 60 495 41 235 39 832 60 518 41 217

Receivables from related parties for both Group and Company included in trade and other receivables amounts 
to R6 946 000 (2013 - R9 609 000). Refer to Note 32.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of debtor mentioned 
above. The group does hold any collateral as security.

10.  CASH ANd CASH EqUIVALENTS

Unrestricted cash
- Own cash 711 410 800 776 565 516 711 403 800 647 565 385
Restricted cash 366 020 759 484 1 040 421 366 020 759 484 1 040 421
- Government grants cash 264 154 523 666 871 263 264 154 523 666 871 263
- Interest earned on  
  Government grant cash 101 866 235 818 169 158 101 866 235 818 169 158

1 077 430 1 560 260 1 605 937 1 077 423 1 560 131 1 605 806

Restricted	cash	(government	grants)

Restricted cash relates to government grant funds and the corresponding interest earned. This cash should 
be used only for the purposes specified by Department of Communications (“DOC”) when the grants were re-
ceived. The project and capital cash balances, net of VAT including interest earned after tax, which is currently  
managed on behalf of the DOC is as follows:

GROUP ANd COMPANY

Projects

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Digital Terrestrial Transmission and Dual Illumination 218 758 18 414 328 271
Broadband - 438 596 438 596
Eassy – undersea cable - 18 421 18 421
Community broadcasters 2 710 7 665 4 460
Disaster Recovery (2010 World Cup Soccer) 40 650 40 570 81 515
CHAN 2 036 - -

264 154 523 666 871 263
Interest earned on Government grants cash. 101 866 235 818 169 158

366 020 759 484 1 040 421

At year-end, the Group and Company had issued the following active guarantees:

Eskom Holdings SOC Limited 994 994 994
Properties and related rates and taxes 151 151 1 218

1 145 1 145 2 212
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11.  SHARE CAPITAL ANd PREMIUM

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Authorised
100 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 100 100 100

Issued
2 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 2 2 2
Share premium 75 890 75 890 75 890

75 892 75 892 75 892

The shareholder (Minister of Communications) controls the unissued shares.

12.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The employee benefits are made up as follows:

Retirement pension benefits liability - (400) 1 300
Post-retirement medical benefits (100 333) (198 225) (172 622)

(100 333) (198 625) (171 322)

During the reporting period, the Group adopted a change in accounting policy for presentation of actuarial 
gains and losses. Actuarial gains or losses were previously recognised in profit or loss, however after the 
change in IAS 19, actuarial gains and losses are now recognised in other comprehensive income. This change 
in policy was applied retrospectively. Refer to Note 39.

The actuarial (gains)/losses are made up as follows :

Retirement pension benefit plan - 1 950 -
Post-retirement medical benefit plan (46) 11 124 -

(46) 13 074 -

12.1.	Retirement	pension	benefits

The Group provides retirement benefits to all its employees and operated a funded defined benefit plan and a defined 
contribution plan governed by the Pension Funds Act of 1956. The Board of Trustees of the Sentech Pension Fund 
resolved to close the defined benefit pension plan fund and transfer the remaining four employees to the Sentech 
Retirement (Provident) Fund with effect from 30 September 2013. A receivable of R1,6 million has been recognised 
for the surplus earned as at 30 September 2013.  The defined benefit plan was actuarially valued on 31 March 2013 
by an independent actuary. The fund was a legal entity separate from the Group. The assets of the fund were invested 
according to statutory prescriptions and the investments policy of the fund.

Present value of funded obligation - (15 400) (12 100) 
Fair value of plan assets - 15 000 13 400
Net (liability)/asset recognised at year-end - (400) 1 300
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12.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUEd)

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Change in the defined benefit funding obligation
Present value of funded obligation at beginning of the year - (12 100) (11 600)
Service cost benefits earned during the year - (350) (370)
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation - (1 000) (900)
Benefits paid - - 770
Actuarial losses - (1 950) -
Present value of funded obligation at end of the year - (15 400) (12 100)

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - 13 400 12 900
Expected return on plan assets - 1 300 1 200
Employee and employer contributions - 300 270
Benefits paid - - (770) 
Actuarial (losses)/gains - - (200)
Fund surplus - 15 000 13 400
Net (liability)/asset - (400) 1 300

Components of the retirement pension benefits  
recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost - 350 370
Interest cost - 1 000 900
Actuarial losses recognised - - 200
Expected return on plan assets - (1 300) (1 200)
Total included in employee remuneration costs - 50 270

Components of the retirement pension benefits  
recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial losses recognised - 1 950 -

Movement in benefit fund (liability)/asset
Net asset at beginning of the year - 1 300 1 300
Net amount recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income - (2 000) (270)
Contributions paid to the fund - 300 270
Net (liability)/asset at end of the year - (400) 1 300
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12.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUEd)

2014
%

2013
% 

RESTATEd

2012
% 

RESTATEd

Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate - 8.2 8.8
Future salary increases - 7.0 7.0
Expected return on plan assets - 9.4 10.0
Future pension increases - - 6,4
Normal retirement age of members 63 years 63 years
Proportion of employees opting for early retirement - 41.8 41.8

Members of the fund
Active members at beginning of the year - 4 5
Exits during the year - - (1)
Active members at end of the year - 4 4

The investments of the fund were in unitised types of investments (insurance policies). The investments of the 
fund provided a return of 9.3% and a Rand value of R1 300 000 for the year-end 31 March 2013, which was 
derived from a “spectrum” of Government Bond Rates plus a small equity premium. The investments were 
expected to provide a return similar to that assumed in determining the expected present value of the plan 
assets. The assets of the fund are invested according to statutory prescriptions and the investment policy of 
the fund. Projected contributions to the fund for the year ended 31 March 2014 financial year are R0 million 
(2013: R0.3 million) as the fund was closed.

Sensitivity analysis GROUP ANd COMPANY
2013
Change in liability 8.2% +0.5% -0.5%
0,5% change in discount rate and 0,24% change in future pension increase (R’000) (15 400) (15 700) (15 100)

No sensitivity analysis was performed as at 31 March 2014 as the fund was closed with effect from 30 September 2013.

Historical information  
Retirement pension benefits

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2011
R’000

2010
R’000

2009
R’000

Present value of the obligation - (15 400) (12 100) (11 600) (9 000) (9 200)
Present value of the plan assets - 15 000 13 400 12 900 10 600 11 400

- (400) 1 300 1 300 1 600 2 200
Actuarial losses (gains)  
recognised - 1 950 (200) (230) 700 2 000

12.2.	Retirement	medical	aid	benefits

The Group provides post-retirement benefits to its retirees in the form of contributions to the independent  
medical aid fund and operates as an unfunded defined benefit plan. Members employed on or after 1 July 
2005, are not entitled to any post retirement subsidy of medical scheme contributions. The liability was  
actuarially valued at 31 March 2014 by an independent actuary, and will be evaluated again at the end of the 
2015 financial year. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment, using the 
projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as they arise in other comprehensive  
income.
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12.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUEd)

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

In order to reduce the Group’s exposure to escalating post-retirement medical aid benefit liability, the  
Accounting Authority resolved that Management should offer the beneficiaries a settlement, which was limited 
to the liability as at 31 March 2013 . Alexanda Forbes was appointed as the advisor for this transaction. Offers 
were made and only 148 beneficiaries did not accept. Offers were made based on a September 2013 actuarial 
valuation of the liability. An amount of R74 million was paid out to settle R115 million of the liability and this 
amounted to a realised saving of R41 million which is included in other income.

The Group is in the process of finalising procurement of a product with Alexanda Forbes and insurance 
companies that will limit risk and exposure to the Group and ring-fence the liability with the corresponding 
asset per IAS 19.

Present value of unfunded obligations 100 333 198 225 172 622

Change in the defined benefit fund obligation
Liability at beginning of the year 198 225 172 622 130 813
Benefits paid (6 303) (4 916) (4 181)
Effect of settlement (115 154) - -

Components of the retirement medical benefits recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost 5 090 4 936 3 965
Interest cost 18 521 14 459 11 263

23 611 19 395 15 228

Components of the retirement medical benefits recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised (46) 11 124 30 762

100 333 198 225 172 622

Principal actuarial assumptions used % % %

Discount rate 9,3 9,5 8,5
Annual increase in health care costs 8,8 9,1 8,0
Expected retirement age 63-65 years 63-65 years 63-65 years

The expected employee benefits to be paid for the 31 March 2015 financial year amount to R4.6 million (2014 
– R6.3 million). Projected expenses to the fund for the 31 March 2015  financial year amount to R16.2 million 
(2014– R35.9 million).

Sensitivity analysis: 2014 GROUP ANd COMPANY

Change in liability 8,80% -1% +1%
1% change in health care cost inflation (R’000) 100 333 88 739 114 373
1% change in current service and interest cost 10 459 9 133 12 086
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12.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUEd)

Sensitivity analysis: 2013 GROUP ANd COMPANY

Change in liability 9,10% -1% +1%
1% change in health care cost inflation (R’000) 198 225 171 279 231 564
1% change in current service and interest cost 23 611 20 068 28 055

GROUP ANd COMPANY

Historical information  
Retirement pension benefits

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2011
R’000

2010
R’000

2009
R’000

Present value of the obligation 100 333 198 225 172 622 130 813 119 580 (9 200)
Actuarial losses/(gains)  
recognised (46) 11 124 30 762 (686) (13 578) 2 000

Analysis of unexpected gains and losses

The accrued liability amounted to R198.2 million as at 31 March 2013. Based on a projection of this result and assuming that all  
actuarial assumptions have borne out in practice, the expected accrued liability as at 31 March 2014 was R227.9 million. The  
accrued liability calculated in this valuation is R100.3 million, reflecting an unexpected gain of R127.5 million.

The voluntary buyout exercise carried out resulted in a gain of R115.1 million.

Not phasing in the Alexander Forbes Health best estimate of the mortality assumption during the current valuation as projected in 
the last valuation has resulted in an unexpected gain of R12.1 million.

An unexpected gain of R3.5 million arose as a result of an increase in the real discount rate, i.e. an increase in the difference  
between the discount rate and the health care cost inflation assumption, from 0.4% per annum to 0.5% per annum. This change was 
necessitated by an increase in real bond yields.

Lower than expected increases in medical scheme contributions resulted in an unexpected gain of R0.3 million.

The removal of two in-service members who were incorrectly included in the valuation as at 31 March 2013 offset by the differences 
in actual and expected changes in membership has resulted in an unexpected loss of R3.6 million.

GROUP ANd COMPANY

13.  dEFERREd TAx

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Deferred tax (liability) asset (38 207) (7 992) 322

Movement in temporary differences
At beginning of the year (7 992) 322 (10 643)
Prior year adjustment (408) - -
Recognised in profit and loss (Note 26) (29 794) (1 005) 19 971
Recognised in other comprehensive income-revaluations - (10 970) (9 008)
Recognised in other comprehensive income - Actuarial gains/losses (13) 3 661 -
At end of the year (38 207) (7 992) 322
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13.  dEFERREd TAx (CONTINUEd)

GROUP ANd COMPANY

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

PROPERTY, 
PLANT ANd 
EqUIPMENT

R’000

PREPAY-
MENTS ANd 
dEPOSITS

R’000
TOTAL
R’000

Balance at 31 March 2012 (85 534) (1 082) (86 616) 
Recognised in profit and loss 10 080 (3 418) 6 662
Recognised in other comprehensive income (10 970) - (10 970) 
Prior year underprovision (7 158) -   (7 158)
Balance at 31 March 2013 (93 582) (4 500) (98 082) 
Recognised in profit and loss 7 079 (6 186) 893
Prior year underprovision (408) - (408)
Balance at 31 March 2014 (86 911) (10 686) (97 597)

GROUP ANd COMPANY

Deferred tax assets are attributed to the following:
PROVISIONS

R’000

UNEARNEd 
INCOME ANd 

dEPOSITS
R’000

TOTAL
R’000

Balance at 31 March 2012 82 696 4 242 86 938
Recognised in profit and loss (2 547) 2 038   (509) 
Recognised in other comprehensive income  3 661 - 3 661
Balance at 31 March 2013 83 810 6 280 90 090
Recognised in profit and loss (31 074) 387 (30 687) 
Recognised in other comprehensive income (13) - (13)
Balance at 31 March 2014 52 723 6 667 59 390

The deferred tax accounted for in other comprehensive income during the year is as follows: 

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Revaluation surplus in other comprehensive income
– property, plant and equipment - (10 970) (9 006)



99

GROUP ANd COMPANY

14.  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Held at amortised cost
Other financial liability 15 816 30 411 -

The other financial liability relates to an amount payable to ICASA in terms of an agreed settlement relating to 
licence fee payable in prior years.The amount agreed settlement amount was R43.7 million. At 31 March 2013 
the settlement terms were R8 million payable by 31 March 2013. Thereafter, 23 equal monthly payments of 
R1.5 million and a final settlement amount of R0.5 million.

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost - 15 816 -

Current portion
At amortised cost 15 816 14 595 -

15 816 30 411 -

COMPANY

15.  LOANS TO (FROM) GROUP COMPANIES

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Subsidiaries
Loan owing to subsidiary 7 52 156 -
Loan owing by subsidiary- Infosat - (46 932) -

7 5 224 -
Impairment of loans to subsidiaries - (5 224) -

7 - -

The Accounting Authority passed a resolution to wind-up Infohold SOC Limited and InfoSat SOC Limited. The 
accounting authority therefore authorised the settlement of the intercompany loans.

GROUP ANd COMPANY

16.  LOANS ANd BORROWINGS

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Interest-bearing liabilities 
Held at amortised cost
Development Bank of Southern Africa - Loan - 25 101 45 429
Less: Short-term portion - (25 101) (21 494)
Long-term portion - - 23 935

The loan from the Development Bank of Southern Africa was used to fund infrastructure development. The 
loan was repaid in full as at 31 March 2014 as per the agreed terms of the loan.

Contractual cashflows for loans and borrowings have been disclosed in Note 30.2.
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GROUP COMPANY

17.  TRAdE ANd OTHER PAYABLES

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Trade payables 64 360 100 396 48 151 64 360 100 335 48 148
Accrued expenses 30 919 88 896 15 453 30 919 88 896 15 398
Financial liabilities 95 279 189 292 63 604 95 279 189 231 63 546
Unearned income - 5 512 2 550 - 5 512 2 550
Customer deposits 9 631 8 071 6 006 9 631 8 071 6 006
Lease straight-lining accrual 10 413 14 039 12 819 10 413 14 039 12 819
VAT 8 562 - - 8 562 - -
Leave pay accrual 18 597 22 460 20 035 18 597 22 460 20 035

142 482 239 374 105 014 142 482 239 313 104 956

The accounting authority considers the carrying amount of trade and other payables to approximate their fair value.

GROUP ANd COMPANY

18.  dEFERREd INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Analysis of movements in deferred 
income
Opening balance 160 074 889 294 817 934
Net funding received (see below) 469 565 152 486 341 140
grant income refundable, net of VAT - (457 017) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (206 998) (127 985) (50 552)
Net interest capitalised 2 671 3 267 3 215
Interest capitalised for the FIFA 2010 project, net of tax 3 710 4 538 4 465
Taxation paid on interest for FIFA 2010 project (1 039) (1 250) (1 250)
Interest deferred 8 430 61 787 -
Interest deferred until approval is received 11 708 22 176 -
Taxation paid (3 278) (6 210) -
Interest previously recognised awaiting approval - 45 821 -
Utilisation recognised in profit and loss (94 489) (73 119) (40 449)
– Community broadcasters (1 914) (4 804) (4 189)
– Dual Illumination cost/revenue (89 349) (68 223) (36 260)
– Chan project cost (3 226) - -
– Other items expensed to profit or loss - (92) -

339 253 448 713 1 071 288
Less: grant funded Work In Progress (91 650) (170 222) (181 994)
goods in transit 118 417 (118 417) -
Closing balance 366 020 160 074 889 294

Net funding received
government grants received 535 304 173 834 388 900
Deemed VAT (14%) (65 739) (21 348) (47 760)

469 565 152 486 341 140

Government grants are received for the purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment and to compensate 
for the Group’s operational expenditure related to Government projects. The deferred income relating to completed 
assets has been netted-off against the cost of the respective assets under property, plant and equipment. Deferred 
income relating to capital work-in-progress is set-off against costs incurred to date, on the net presentation basis. The 
asset will then be depreciated over its useful life based on the net carrying amount after taking Government grant 
funding into account as per the accounting policy, see Note 3.11.
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19.  PROVISIONS
OPENING 
BALANCE AddITIONS

UTILISEd 
dURING 

THE YEAR TOTAL

Reconciliation of provisions -  
Company and Group - 2014
Legal and other provisions 12 878 1 670 (1 868) 12 680

Reconciliation of provisions -  
Company and Group - 2013
Legal and other provisions 39 006 675 (26 803) 12 878

The Accounting Authority has raised provision for legal and other provisions that are likely to be incurred. The 
analysis of the provisions is as above.

GROUP ANd COMPANY

Analysis of provisions

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Legal fees 500 2 100 1 500
Legal claim 9 114 9 114 8 714
Overtime 1 564 - 8 000
Ex-employee claim 1 395 1 664 1 664
Other Provisions 107 - 19 128

12 680 12 878 39 006

legal	fees	and	claims

The Group is involved in legal matters and the expected exposure is included above.

20.  GOVERNMENT GRANT PAYABLE

The total government grant payable for the Broadband and Eassy projects was paid to the National Treasury 
during the financial year. The amount paid was the capital portion and interest earned (net of tax) at the date 
of settlement.

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Broadband capital, net of VAT 457 017 457 017
Interest payable on grant refund - Prior year 149 799 126 978
Interest payable on grant refund - Current year 15 625 22 821
Balance at 31 March 2013 622 441 606 816
Amount paid to National Treasury - Interest Payable (net of tax) (622 441) -
Closing balance of refund payable - 606 816
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GROUP COMPANY

21.   REVENUE ANd OTHER INCOME

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Revenue from Rendering of Services comprises  
of the following:
Terrestrial television services 439 252 419 257 439 252 419 257
Terrestrial FM radio services 201 639 186 844 201 639 186 844
Terrestrial MW radio services 7 245 6 218 7 245 6 218
Terrestrial short wave radio services 19 755 23 703 19 755 23 703
Terrestrial and satellite linking 85 622 78 921 85 622 78 921
Satellite direct-to-home 58 910 44 405 58 910 44 405
Business television 5 903 7 140 5 903 7 140
VSAT 13 411 24 343 13 411 24 343
Dual illumination grant income 89 349 68 224 89 349 68 224
Other 4 758 601 4 758 591

925 844 859 656 925 844 859 646

Revenue from Rental Income comprises of the following:
Facility rentals 46 261 39 692 46 261 39 692

46 261 39 692 46 261 39 692

Revenue from Sale of goods comprises of the following:
Vivid 3 182 35 3 182 35

3 182 35 3 182 35

975 287 899 383 975 287 899 373

Other Income comprises of the following:
gain realised on settlement of post-retirement medical benefit  
plan obligation 41 410 - 41 410 -

22.  ExPENSES BY NATURE

The following is disclosed for profit and loss from  
continuing operations:

Cost of sales 670 566 496 590 670 566 496 590
Operating expenses 79 316 97 275 79 272 97 275
Administration expenses 50 712 99 053 50 711 99 011
Selling expenses 14 718 12 829 14 718 12 829

815 312 705 747 815 267 705 705
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22.  ExPENSES BY NATURE (CONTINUEd)

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Cost of sales
Employee costs 328 266 276 447 328 266 276 447
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 48 373 24 226 48 373 24 226
Operating lease expense - satellite rental 161 531 111 501 161 531 111 501
Transmitter tubes 4 249 8 255 4 249 8 255
Support equipment 2 490 2 261 2 490 2 261
Other cost of sales 125 657 73 900 125 657 73 900

670 566 496 590 670 566 496 590

The cost of sales amount was restated in the prior year as a result of actuarial losses reclassified to Other 
Comprehensive Income (refer to note 39) and adjustments to the depreciation expense (refer to note 40).

Operating expenses includes the following:

Operating lease expenses
- Premises 9 203 9 935 9 203 9 935
- Lease rentals on operating lease - other 3 785 2 413 3 785 2 413
Auditors remuneration
- Current year audit fees 1 707 3 056 1 707 3 056
- Adjustment for previous year 1 500 1 585 1 500 1 585
Legal and consulting fees 14 674 25 857 14 674 25 857
Transport costs 21 585 20 849 21 585 20 849
Loss on impairment or disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 901 12 849 5 901 12 849
Other operating expenses 20 961 20 731 20 917 20 731
Total Operating expenses 79 316 97 275 79 272 97 275

Administration expenses include the following:

Licences 4 838 65 091 4 838 65 091
     - Spectrum 965 33 534 965 33 534
     - ICASA 2 540 30 411 2 540 30 411
     - ECNS/ECS 701 1 087 701 1 087
     - Other 632 59 632 59
Other administration expenses 45 874 33 962 45 873 33 920
Total Administration expenses 50 712 99 053 50 711 99 011

Administrative expenses decreased from prior year due restatements (refer to note 40).

Group and Company

Selling expenses includes the following:

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Advertising and other selling expenses 14 718 12 829
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23.   EMPLOYEE COSTS

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Salaries and Wages 269 781 219 535
Medical aid contributions
- current employees 26 135 23 177
- pensioners 5 770 5 159
- post-retirement obligations, excluding interest 2 312 4 968
Statutory charges 941 887
Pension costs - defined contribution plan 23 327 22 721

328 266 276 447

Total number of employees at year-end (excluding temporary staff) 530 522

GROUP COMPANY

24.  FINANCE INCOME

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

dividend revenue
Sanlam Collective Investments Dividends 7 482 8 727 7 482 8 727

Interest revenue
Bank 38 720 18 758 38 720 18 757

46 202 27 485 46 202 27 484

25.  FINANCE COSTS

Recognised in profit or loss
Borrowings 4 246 5 615 4 246 5 615
Other financial interest
Other interest expenses 336 157 336 142
Interest on government grant payable - 126 978 - 126 978
Post-retirement medical interest 18 521 14 459 18 521 14 459
Interest previously recognised deferred to deferred income -  
government grants - 45 821 - 45 821

23 103 193 030 23 103 193 015
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26.   INCOME TAx ExPENSE

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Major	components	of	the	tax	expense
Current
Normal income tax - current period (15 740) 72 075
Restatement (see Note 40) - (17 783) 
Tax recovered from grant funds (Note 18) (2 951) (1 271) 
Prior year over provision - (3 861)

(18 691) 49 160
deferred Tax - Profit of Loss
Deferred tax debit/(credit) 29 794 (8 748) 
Arising from prior period adjustments 408 625
Restatement (see Note 40) - 9 128

30 202 1 005
11 511 50 165

deferred Tax - Other Comprehensive Income
gain on Revaluation - 10 970
Restatement - Actuarial gains/(losses) (see Note 39) 13 (3 661)

13 7 309

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate:

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Applicable tax rate 28,00 28,00
Expenses not deductible 0,62 1 671,38
Dividend income exempt (3,33) (77,74)
Capitalised interest income 16,53 40,42
Interest income not recognised - refunded to National Treasury (73,66) 282,37
Amortisation of government grant (23,15) (599,69)
Depreciation of buildings 5,36 - 
Effective tax rate (49,63) 1 344,74 
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27.  CASH GENERATEd FROM OPERATIONS

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Operating Profit 201 385 193 635 201 430 193 667
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 48 373 24 226 48 373 24 226
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 12 684 - 12 684
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 5 901 165 5 901 165
DTT Dual illumination (89 349) (68 224) (89 349) (68 224)
Post-retirement medical aid benefit obligation settlement surplus (41 410) - (41 410) -
(Decrease)/increase in provision for the impairment of loans to subsidiary - - (7) 46 
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities (558) (325) (558) (325)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions (198) (26 128) (198) (26 128) 
DBSA Interest (1 166) - (1 166) - 
ICASA Settlement - 30 411 -  30 411

Cash generated from operations before working  
capital changes 122 978 166 444 123 016 166 522

(83 600) 94 376 (83 516) 94 286
Inventories (7 371) 2 734 (7 371) 2 734
Trade and other receivables  20 663  (27 632)  20 686  (27 671) 
Trade and other payables (96 892) 119 274 (96 831) 119 273
Decrease in loan from subsidiary - - - (50)
Cash generated from operations 39 378 260 820 39 500 260 808

28.  INTEREST PAId

Amount recognised in profit or loss (23 103) (193 030) (23 103) (193 015) 
Interest on post-retirement medical aid  18 521 14 459  18 521 14 459
Interest accrued on government grants refundable - 172 798 - 172 798

(4 582) (5 773) (4 582) (5 758)

29.  TAx PAId

Balance at beginning of the year 3 787 (2 653) 3 787 (2 653)
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss 18 691 (49 160) 18 691 (49 160)
Tax recovered from grant funds   (2 951) (1 271) (2 951) (1 271) 
Prior year refund   (2 653) - (2 653) - 
Other 138 - 138 - 
Balance at end of the year (50 401) (3 787) (50 401) (3 787)

(33 389) (56 871) (33 389) (56 871)
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30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

30.1	Exposure	to	credit	risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash and cash equivalents 10 1 077 430 1 560 260 1 605 937 1 077 423 1 560 131 1 605 806
Loans and receivables 9 33 221 43 010 37 069 33 221 43 033 37 051

1 110 651 1 603 270 1 643 006 1 110 644 1 603 164 1 642 857

The maximum exposure for loans and receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

Domestic 30 262 40 314 31 618 30 262 40 337 31 600
Foreign 2 959 2 696 5 451 2 959 2 696 5 451

33 221 43 010 37 069 33 221 43 033 37 051

Impairment	losses
The ageing of loans and receivables at the reporting date was:

Not past due date 9 943 24 687 25 593 9 943 24 685 25 594
Past due 30 days 2 097 (1 848) 6 599 2 097 (1 848) 6 599
Past due 60 days 5 749 2 864 2 776 5 749 2 864 2 776
Past due 90 days and more 15 432 17 307 2 101 15 432 17 332 2 082
Net loans and receivables 33 221 43 010 37 069 33 221 43 033 37 051

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans and receivables during the year was as 
follows: 

Balance at beginning of year (9 582) (16 662) (16 213) (9 612) (16 335) (15 862)
Impairment loss (recognised)/reversed 4 666 7 080 (449) 4 696 6 723 (473)

(4 916) (9 582) (16 662) (4 916) (9 612) (16 335)

The collectability of loans and receivables is assessed at reporting date and specific allowances are made for 
any doubtful loans and receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Doubtful debts 
are written-off during the year in which they are identified. The impairment loss at year-end relates to loans 
and receivables which have been outstanding for a long time and have not been settled subsequent to year-
end. Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired are considered good credit quality.

30.2	Exposure	to	liquidity	risk

Financial liabilities at year-end were as follows:

Trade and other payables 95 279 189 292 63 604 95 279 189 231 63 546
Loans and borrowings - 25 101 45 429 - 25 101 45 429
Other financial liabilities 15 816 30 411 - 15 816 30 411 -
Carrying amount 111 095 244 804 109 033 111 095 244 743 108 975
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30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
       (CONTINUEd)

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

The maturity of contractual financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting 
agreements are as follows:

1 year or less
Trade and other payables 95 279 189 292 63 604 95 279 189 231 63 546
Loans and borrowings, including interest - 25 101 25 942 - 25 101 25 942
Other financial liabilities 15 816 14 595 - 15 816 14 595 -
2 – 5 years
Loans and borrowings, including interest - - 29 398 - - 29 398
Other financial liabilities - 15 816 - - 15 816 -
Total contractual cashflows 111 095 244 804 118 944 111 095 244 743 118 886

The Group and Company will be able to meet their contractual obligations as they become due.

30.3	Unutilised	borrowing	capacity

Approved and unutilised overdraft facilities 6 700 6 700 6 700 6 700 6 700 6 700

30.4	Exposure	to	currency	risk

Loans from Group Companies and loans and borrowings are denominated in South African Rand. Foreign  
currency receivables are from the customer accounts denominated in foreign currency.

The exposure to currency risk was as follows based on carrying amounts for other financial instruments:

Group and Company: 2014

LOANS 
ANd 

RECEIVA-
BLES
R’000

TRAdE 
ANd OTH-

ER  
PAYABLES

R’000

CASH ANd 
CASH  

EqUIVA-
LENTS
R’000

NET  
ExPO-

SURE AT 
YEAR-ENd

R’000

gBP 694 (72) 3 794 4 416
EUR 1 262 (10 969) 42 (9 665) 
USD 1 003 (107) 5 148 6 044

2 959 (11 148) 8 984 795
Group and Company: 2013
gBP 1 510 - 399 1 909
EUR 530 (454) 6 394 6 470
USD 656 - 3 398 4 054
gBP 2 696 (454) 10 191 12 433

Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2014

R
2013

R 
RESTATEd

2012
R 

RESTATEd

2014
R

2013
R 

RESTATEd

2012
R 

RESTATEd

gBP 16,533 13,504 11,848 17,780 14,226 12,300
EUR 13,940 11,045 10,225 14,771 12,027 10,256
USD 10,353 8,586 7,418 10,696 9,359 7,692
CHF 11,638 9,212 8,432 12,453 10,071 8,518
SEK 1,636 1,272 1,135 1,705 1,476 1,160
JPy 0,106 - - 0,106 - -
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30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
       (CONTINUEd)

GROUP COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Sensitivity	analysis

A 10 percent weakening of the Rand against the following currencies at 31 March would have (decreased)/
increased profit or loss for the Group by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other  
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

gBP 318 137 490 318 137 490
EUR (696) 466 726 (696) 466 726
USD 435 292 503 435 292 503
CHF - - (35) - - (35)
SEK - - (87) - - (87)

A 10 percent strengthening of the Rand against the currencies at 31 March would have had equal but opposite  
effect in the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain  
constant.

30.5	Exposure	to	interest	rate	risk

The Group generally adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to change in interest rates is on a floating 
rate basis.

Profile

The interest rate risk profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Fixed rate instruments
Development Bank of Southern Africa Loan - (25 101) (45 429) - (25 101) (45 429)
Variable rate instruments
government grants cash and cash  
equivalents 711 410 759 484 1 040 421 711 403 759 484 1 040 421
Own cash and cash equivalents 366 020 800 776 565 516 366 020 800 647 565 385

1 077 430 1 560 260 1 605 937 1 077 423 1 560 131 1 605 806

Sensitivity	analysis

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would have increased or decreased profit or loss by R0 (2013– 
R711 037) with all other variables held constant.

The loan from the Development Bank of South Africa was fully settled as at 31 March 2014 therefore there was 
no exposure to interest rate risk at reporting date.

30.6	Fair	values	versus	carrying	amounts

The Group and Company carrying amounts for financial assets and liabilities approximate the fair values of 
the respective financial instruments at year end.

Estimation	of	fair	values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial 
instruments reflected in the table above.
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30.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUEd)

Interest	bearing	loans

Fair value calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cashflows.

loans	and	receivables/payables	including	group	balances

For receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the notional amount is deemed to reflect 
the fair value. All other receivables/payables are discounted to determine the fair value.

Non-derivative	financial	assets	and	liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future 
principal and interest cashflows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Interest	rates	used	for	determining	fair	value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cashflows, when applicable, are based on prime rates at the 
reporting date plus an adequate credit spread.

Fair	value	hierarchy

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group and Company did not have financial instruments carried at fair value, 
by valuation method, requiring the following fair value hierarchy classification:

• Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,  
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

• Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).

31.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• credit risk;

• liquidity risk; and

• market risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further 
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.
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31.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEd)

Risk	management	framework

The Accounting Authority has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk  
management framework. The Accounting Authority is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk 
management policies.

31.1	Credit	risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and cash 
and cash equivalents held on behalf of the Group by financial institutions.

Trade	and	other	receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 
demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which  
customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. There is a concentration of credit risk in a single  
customer, South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC) as more than fifty percent of the Company’s revenue 
comes from this customer. SABC is the national broadcaster and is supported by the Government to ensure that 
it meets its obligations when they fall due. Therefore, SABC does not pose a significant credit risk and has been 
settling its account on a timely basis.

The Accounting Authority has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually  
for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.  
Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a 
prepaid basis.

Cash	and	cash	equivalents

Reputable financial institutions are used for investing and cash handling purposes.

31.2	liquidity	risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity  
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses  
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a 
period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of extreme 
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Group maintains 
an overdraft facility with ABSA Bank for R6 700 000. The facility utilisation has been disclosed in Note 30.3.
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31.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEd)

31.3	Market	risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will 
affect the Group’s income of the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising 
the return.

Currency	risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the  
respective presentation currency of the Group. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily de-
nominated are Japanese Yen (JPY),Swedish Krona (SEK), British Pound (GBP), Swiss Franc (CHF), United 
States Dollar (USD) and Euro (EUR).

The Group does not hedge foreign purchases and sales but, where possible, matches foreign currency  
denominated cash inflows and outflows through the underlying operations of the Group. This provides an  
economic hedge and no derivatives are entered into. The Group’s net exposure is kept at an acceptable level 
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Interest	rate	risk

The Group addresses its interest rate risk by ensuring that all borrowings and investments are at market related rates. 
Within group entities, inter-group financing is also used as it is cheaper and subject to minimal interest rate risk. Certain 
long-term borrowings are entered into at fixed interest rates if the rates offered are favourable to the Group.

31.4	Capital	management

One of the key focus areas of the Accounting Authority is the optimal and most efficient use of the Group’s 
capital. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management strategy is to ensure that it maintains healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its core business and social mandate, whilst maximising stakeholder value.

The Group’s aim is to ensure that it funds the maintenance and growth of its core business using internally 
generated funds, whilst using government grant funding for expansion capital expenditure requirements and 
government initiated programmes.

The Group is restricted in the use of debt funding and accordingly the optimising of the weighted average cost 
of capital is limited.

The philosophy is therefore to actively apply excess capital to growing and maintaining the core business and  
using government funding for significant mandated projects.

GROUP

The	core	debt	components	of	the	Group	is	as	follows:

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Borrowings - 25 101 45 429
Post-retirement medical benefits obligation 100 333 198 225 172 622
Pension fund obligation - 400 -

100 333 223 726 218 051
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31.   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEd)

The post-retirement medical benefits obligation relates to employees that joined the Group before 2005. This 
liability relates to the past and certain current employees who are entitled to post-retirement medical aid  
contribution where they remain in employment with SENTECH until retirement. This is a commitment that  
increases at medical initiation which approximates at least 2 percent above CPI.

GROUP

Key capital structure data

2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

Shareholder Funds – Equity 1 166 200 953 194 956 473
Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation (EBITDA) 241 759 217 860 206 176
Interest expense 22 767 20 074 17 903
– Long-term borrowings 4 246 5 615 6 640
– Post-retirement medical 18 521 14 459 11 263

The Group benchmarks the following capital ratios:

debt to Equity ratio
Target Less than 40% Less than 40% Less than 40%

Actual 9 % 23 % 23 %

EBITdA to debt
Target greater than 3 greater than 3 greater than 3

Actual 2,49 0.97 0.95

EBITdA to interest cover
Target greater than 10 greater than 10 greater than 10

Actual 11 11 12

32.  RELATEd PARTIES
 

Related party transactions occurred between Sentech, Department of Communication(DOC), The Independent 
Communications. Authority of South Africa (ICASA) and the South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC).

All transactions with government departments were on an arm’s length and therefore these are considered to 
be normal dealings.

Key management personnel have also been identified as related parties and their remuneration has been disclosed 
below. There were no commitments to related parties for the year-ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

Transactions with key management personnel

32.1	loans	to	directors

There were no loans issued to directors during the year or balances outstanding at the end of the year.
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32.  RELATEd PARTIES (CONTINUEd)

32.2	Key	management	compensation

Group	and	Company

directors emoluments 2014

PERIOd 
OF  

SERVICE
(MONTHS)

BASIC  
SALARY
R‘000

ExPENSE 
ANd 

OTHER 
ALLOW-
ANCES
R‘000

PROV-
IdENT 
FUNd
R‘000

FEES
R‘000

TOTAL
R‘000

Executive
SJ Mohapi 12 2 731 - 404 - 3 135
KS Matabane 12 1 640 - 243 - 1 883
R Rasikhinya 7 875 - 47 - 922
Non-executive
LT Khumalo 2 - - - 64 64
P Mashile 11 - - - 372 372
SM Molala 12 - - - 322 322
TJA Mongake 12 - 14 - 707 721
SJ Mjwara 4 - - - 120 120
NP Mbele 4 - - - 91 91
RJ Huntley 4 - - - 74 74
X Daku 4 - - - 74 74

5 246 14 694 1 824 7 778

2014: Chairperson - Audit Committee

JK Masemola 12 - 1 - 136 137

directors emoluments 2013

Executive
TP Phili 4 450 5 76 - 531
SJ Mohapi 12 2 492 14 369 - 2 875
KS Matabane 9 1 148 11 171 - 1 330
Non-executive
HM Dhlamini 12 - 4 - 227 231
ZD Hlatshwayo 12 - 6 - 229 235
LT Khumalo 12 - - - 230 230
P Mashile 12 - - - 347 347
SM Molala 12 - 6 - 304 310
TJA Mongake 12 - 8 - 308 316
SJ Mjwara 12 - 6 - 230 236

4 090 60 616 1 875 6 641

2013: Chairperson - Audit Committee

JK Masemola 7 - - - 152 152

See Accounting Authority’s report for movements (resignations and appointment) in Directors during the year.
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32.  RELATEd PARTIES (CONTINUEd)

other	key	management	personnel

Key personnel are defined as per their positions below. Remuneration to key management personnel excluding  
directors’ emoluments above is:

Group	and	Company

PERIOd 
OF  

SERVICE
(MONTHS)

BASIC  
SALARY
R ‘000

ExPENSE 
ANd 

OTHER 
ALLOW-
ANCES
R ‘000

PROVI-
dENT
FUNd
R ‘000

TOTAL
R ‘0002014 POSITION

T Masooa Executive: Human Resource 12 1 290 18 264 1 572
MM Matobako Executive: Risk Management 12 1 307 18 255 1 580
PN Phukubje Executive: Internal Audit 12 1 307 18 255 1 580
NB Motswasele Executive: Business Services 12 1 282 18 252 1 552
DW Ngwenya Executive: Technology 5 538 8 80 626
Z Adams Executive Head: Legal 12 1 225 18 254 1 497
Z Mthembu Executive: Strategy Co-ordination 2 244 - 36 280

P Maine
Executive Head: Information 
Technology 10 1 068 - 215 1 283

NO Nekhavhambe Executive : Finance 2 217 - 43 260
TJ Leshope Executive: Operations 7 783 11 159 953

9 261 109 1 813 11 183

2013

T Masooa Executive: Human Resource 12 1 177 - 239 1 416
MM Matobako Executive: Risk Management 6 588 - 148 736
PN Phukubje Executive: Internal Audit 2 203 - 42 245
NB Motswasele Executive: Business Services 12 1 170 - 227 1 397
DW Ngwenya Executive: Technology 12 1 215 - 181 1 396
Z Adams Executive Head: Legal 12 1 117 - 230 1 347
Z Mthembu Executive: Strategy Co-ordination 5 610 - 92 702

6 080 - 1 159 7 239

32.3		Transactions	and	balances	with	related	entities

Government	grants

Various transactions were entered into with the Department of Communication and National Treasury with 
respect to government grants. Government grants are accounted for in terms of IAS 20 – Accounting for  
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance.

Government grants received and other related movements have been disclosed in Note 18. Entities controlled 
by the Department of Communication.

The  Group  is  controlled  by  the  Government  of  South  Africa  which  owns  100%  of  the  Company’s  
shares  through  the Department of Communications. The following transactions occurred with entities  
controlled by the Department of Communications during the year:
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32.  RELATEd PARTIES (CONTINUEd)

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

32.3.1 Sale of goods and services
SABC 533 134 505 145
South African Post Office - 3 748
USAASA 2 146 6 059

535 280 514 952

Services are rendered at market related rates.

32.3.2 Purchases of goods and services
South African Post Office 1 31
SABC 3 102 275
ICASA 7 429 78 887

10 532 79 193

Transactions with related parties are on an arm’s length basis.

32.3.3 Related party receivables
Trade receivables
South African Post Office (260) 991
SABC 1 836 2 243
USAASA 6 939 6 907
Impairment of related parties (1 568) (532)

6 947 9 609

Other receivables
ICASA 1 377 -

32.4.4 Related party other financial liabilities
ICASA 15 816 30 411

32.3.5 Transactions with subsidiaries
Loans owing by subsidiary - 52 156
Impairment of loans to subsidiary  -   (5 224) 
Loans owing to subsidiary 7 (46 932)

7 -

The Accounting Authority passed a resolution to wind-up Infohold SOC Limited and InfoSat SOC Limited.  
The Accounting Authority therefore authorised the settlement of the intercompany loans.
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33.  COMMITMENTS

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

Capital	commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not yet incurred is as follows:

Requested per corporate plan
Sentech funded assets 644 944 414 048
government grant funded assets 265 750 601 000
Approved but not contracted 750 127 944 146
Contracted 160 567 70 902

The authorised capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment is planned to occur in the next financial 
year. It will be financed from internal cash resources and from government grants received.

operating	lease	commitments

The Group leases various facilities, offices, equipment and satellite capacity under non-cancellable operating 
lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

Minimum lease cash payments due

- within one year 170 188 46 760
- in second to fifth year inclusive 601 337 90 168
- later than five years 1 394 112 48 959

2 165 637 185 887

34.   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ANd CONTINGENT ASSETS

At the date of this there were no signficant contigent liabilities.

litigation	Matters

The Group has initiated review proceeding against ICASA on the findings document in terms of Section 4C of 
the ICASA Act regarding the wholesale broadcasting transmission services discussion document published in 
the Government Gazette on 7 June 2013. ICASA has entered an appearance to default. The Group is currently 
in negotiations with ICASA reviewing possible settlement.

At the date of this report, there were no other significant matters that would result in contingent liabilities or 
contingent assets.
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35.   LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONdUCT, IRREGULAR,  
        FRUITLESS ANd WASTEFUL ExPENdITURES

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

2012
R’000 

RESTATEd

All losses through criminal conduct and any irregular expenditure.

Section 1 of the Public Finance Management Act, Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended, defines irregular expendi-
ture as expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not incurred 
in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation.

The following amounts have been determined as being losses through irregular expenditure, in terms of  
section 55(2)(b)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999, as amended:

Opening balance 42 167 36 862 30 991
Add: Expenditure where supply chain management process not followed 4 762 5 807 5 871
Less: Investigated and found not to be irregular - (502) -
Less:Current year expenditure condoned (4 762) - -
Less: Prior year expenditure condoned (6 590) - -
Closing balance 35 577 42 167 36 862

Material	losses	through	fruitless	and	wasteful	expenditures

Section 1 of the Public Finance Management Act, Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended, defines fruitless and waste-
ful expenditure as expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised.

The following material losses, through fruitless and wasteful expenditure have been identified as being  
reportable in terms of the materiality framework approved by the Minister of Communications for the year 
under review:

Balance at 1 April 4 702 4 702 4 624
Losses identified during the year 332 - 78
Balance at 31 March 5 034 4 702 4 702

36.   BORROWING LIMITS

In terms of the Group’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Accounting Authority shall not have the power to  
borrow without the prior approval of the shareholder and the Minister of Finance. The Minister of  
Communications has approved a banking facility with ABSA for R74 million which includes an overdraft facility 
of R6.7 million. The facility has not yet been utilised and will only be used when required by the Group.

37.   GOING CONCERN

The Accounting Authority has reviewed the corporate plan and prepared a cashflow forecast for the 18 months 
to 31 September 2015. On the basis of this review, and in light of the current financial position, approved 
grant funding, the Accounting Authority is satisfied that the Group and Company has access to adequate cash 
resources to continue in its operational existence for the foreseeable future and is a going concern, and have 
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

38.   EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOd

The Accounting Authority is not aware of any other matters or circumstances arising since the end of the  
financial year that would impact the reported results, other than those matters already disclosed in these 
financial statements.
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39.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

GROUP ANd COMPANY
2014
R’000

2013
R’000 

RESTATEd

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial  
Reporting Standards on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of an amendment of IAS 
19-Employee Benefits.

IAS	19	-	Employee	benefits

During the year, the group changed its accounting policy with respect to the treatment of actuarial gains and 
losses with the benchmark treatment of IAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

The aggregate effect of the changes in accounting policy on the audited annual financial statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2014 is as follows:

Actuarial losses
Decrease in operating expenses - (13 074) 
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income -  13 074

- -

deferred tax
Decrease in tax credit in profit or loss - 3 661
Increase in tax credit in other comprehensive income - (3 661)
Net	effect	on	Statement	of	Profit	or	Loss	and	other	comprehensive	income -

40.   PRIOR PERIOd ERRORS

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Inventory - In the prior years spares were reclassified from Inventory to Property, plant and equipment and 
were depreciated over what was considered their useful life. After reviewing IAS 16 it was concluded that this 
was incorrect and the spares were actually inventory.

Property, plant and equipment - Based on the error related to spares above, the property, plant and equipment  
balance was also adjusted. In addition to this adjustment, an item of property plant and equipment was  
correctly reclassified from administrative expenses.

Current Taxation - The treatment of government grant depreciation in the tax calculation was revised based on 
the advice of the tax advisors resulting in a restatement of the prior year current taxation balance.

Deferred Taxation - The deferred tax treatment of items included in the tax calculation was revised resulting 
in a restatement of the prior year deferred taxation balance.
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40.   PRIOR PERIOd ERRORS (CONTINUEd)

GROUP COMPANY
2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments  
as follows:

Statements of Financial Position
Inventories
Previously reported 13 127 7 491 13 127 7 491
Increase in inventories 51 167 48 840 51 167 48 840
Restated Balance 64 294 56 331 64 294 56 331

Property, plant and equipment
Net Book Value
Previously reported 545 559 506 808 545 559 506 808
Inventories
Cost of inventory (51 167) (48 840) (51 167) (48 840)
Previously reported 51 167 47 398 51 167 47 398

- (1 442) - (1 442)
Computer, technical and office equipment
Cost 95 - 95 -
Accumulated depreciation (25) - (25) -

70 - 70 -
Restated balances 545 629 505 366 545 629 505 366

Retained Income
Previously reported 302 987 350 629 302 942 350 538
Decrease in accumulated depreciation- spares 47 398 47 398 47 398 47 398
Decrease in depreciation expense-spares 3 769 - 3 769 -
Inventory adjustment 51 167 47 398 51 167 47 398
Decrease in expenses - item reclassified to property, plant and equipment 70 - 70 -
Decrease in normal tax expense 17 783 - 17 783 -
Increase in deferred tax expense-profit or loss (5 467) - (5 467) -
Restated balance 366 540 398 027 366 495 397 936

Taxation
deferred taxation
Previously reported (2 525) - (2 525) -
Increase in deferred tax expense-profit or loss (5 467) - (5 467) -
Restated balance (7 992) - (7 992) -

Current tax liability
Previously reported (13 996) - (13 996) - 
Decrease in current tax expense  17 783 -  17 783 -
Restated balance 3 787 - 3 787 -




